TABLE OF CONTENTS

MEETING LOGISTICS
[EINEIAIY ..ottt e e e 1
CoMMISSION AQENAAL. .......ceuiiiiiiiii e e e 4

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

o [=] o = PP PP PPPPPPPPPPP 5

VCC PrOPOSAl.....cccoiieeiiiiiie et e e e e et e e e e e e e eeaaees 6
EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Yo [=1 o Lo - SRR 9

SVAM / COE #3300 EXIENSION ..ccoeieiieeeeieeieieeieeeieae e e 10

NCI Extension #2882 REQUEST...........uuuuuwuuuuueunnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnennnnnennnnns 10
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

0[] o = PSP P PP PPPPP 12

Signal Tape Proposal ... 13

EXtENSION REQUEST......uuuii i eieiiiias e e e e e e ettt eeeeaeeseaaaannnaaaaaaasannes 15

SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
New Grant Proposals & Committee Recommendations.................... 17
EXIENSION REQUEST. ....eieieeiiiiiiiiitiiiiiiiietieseeeaeseeeesssssssesesssssnnnnnnsnssnssnnns 17

SOUTHWEST ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

AGENAA ..ot e e e e e e e et e aaaeaaane 24
FY20 Grant PropOSalsS ...........uuuuuuuuuuumiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiinnnnennennnnennnnennennenne 25
EXIENSION REQUESES .....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiittieeeeeeieiieeeesseeeeeeeaeeseeeeeeenneeeeennes 40

TROF COMMITTEE

AGEINTA .ttt 42

TROF #3300 Tazewell / Point Broadband Discussion...........cc........... 43

EXtENSION REQUESES ... .ot 44

TROF AWAIAS ... ettt e e e et e e e e ennanns 51
ADMINISTRATIVE

FInancial SUMMIAIY ..o 53



ITINERARY
Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Fall Full Tobacco Commission Meeting
General Francis Marion Hotel
107 East Main Street, Marion, VA
October 9-10, 2019

HOTEL CHECK IN
3:00 PM

HOTEL CHECK OUT
11:00 AM

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2019
11:30 AM-12:30PM  LUNCH

1:00-3:00 PM EXECUTIVE Committee Meeting
3:00-4:30 PM SOUTHWEST ECODEV Committee Meeting
4:30-5:30 PM TROF Committee Meeting
HOTEL CHECK-IN TIME STARTS AT 3:00 P.M.
6:30—8:30 PM RECEPTION — SPONSORED BY
Appalachian Electric Power Farm Credit of the Virginias
Dewberry Draper Aden Associates

Virginia Farm Bureau Federation

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2019

9:30-10:00 AM RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT Committee Meeting
10:00-10:30 AM EDUCATION Committee Meeting
10:30 -12:00 PM FULL COMMISSION Meeting
HOTEL CHECK-OUT TIME AT 11:00 AM
12:00-12:30 PM BOX LUNCH SERVED
12:30 PM Tour of the 1908 Henderson School House
1:30 PM DEPART FOR HOME

** SAFE TRAVEL HOME* *



TABLE OF CONTENTS

MEETING LOGISTICS
TRINIARY, b 05 a8 i asvioindsmnnsass s esbhskovussibevvr o Rigeyee s Sinateusuovvnva oy atligessesnes
COMMISSIONEATENUR :.vviviineinsorsaresssonnsinsniossnisiossyivasinsiisssvostigssssossssrasssnvorde o Myvsion

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Hemp Repulatory LIPAate uinas susomimsimbmasniomsoenyimesaiinsigesgas o
MPower VA #3473 De-obligation ........ccsciiiesssssisessasmsivisssssoniaioi sasnsnsossbgpinsavagsons
VIO Pronosal . ivintumiiisionamaionsinnms ot Sk res s
Regional Office Leadership Sratefy.. ..o iubmisiams i isseimessssprseniviavissi dgge s
Staall Towns Initiative TINAate ... i iminsiionissnensidsnissmiasnmisivs i omas s s oAgis s

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
New Grant Loan Proposals & Committee Recommendations .......ccooveienieennes
Extension Request ... T L. ..ooiiieiiinimerssnsosissnsinsnee iiitiero SRR ..o

SOUTHWEST ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Rrojoct Red DISCUSSION v siiniininiinbeismnisiismsssioiiviasmisss cossgho g i
TROF #3300 Tazewell / Point Broadband DiSCUSSION........cc.cccorieriiniiinirisiceseinnne.
Bxtefnigion: Requestsi s itmimmivsiiiros imivimmsio s sonsriogilvesfye o B insoff

ADMINISTRATIVE
Fini At CIAl SR s saveressanmnisibusiims e et iuge i s ot e Pl i Pcocrswvailfovassevasss
Committee ARSI ENMET S i i isicies s s insatstWV: rorassssa8Binss Bainissisds s nis dilnonsiissainpnsin
Scheduling Winter Full Commission MeEeting ......ceecveeeecsitisivinsnsnssiiassnssessenssassenes
Travel Reimbursement Vouchers (choose overnight/no overnight)



The 1908 Henderson Schoolhouse

The Henderson occupies a historically
significant local landmark situated on the
highest point in Historic Downtown Marion
Virginia; a three-story brick structure known
as the “1908 Schoolhouse.” The building has
housed a school, library, and the historical
society in the past and now we have finished
our historical renovation and look forward to a
creative and wonderful future as The Wayne TR
C. Henderson School of Appalachian Arts! R

Fine Arts once housed The Smyth County School Board it was opened up as one big
studio and now, through the acquisition of equipment made possible through The
Tobacco Commission, we have working fine art studios, complete with drawing horses,
floor easels, and plenty of storage.

Our music room was once a first grade classroom, complete with slate blackboards and
a cloak room. Now it has the capacity to seat up to forty students, yet is comfortable
enough for individual lessons. We also have a portable speaker system and many
amenities that can help facilitate a wonderful learning environment.

Our Quilting Room still honors the original wood floors, the only first floor studio with
original flooring. This room has been organized and supplied with all the accessories
needed for a successful studio experience thanks to the donations and expertise of our
local Quilt Guild Chapter. They meet here in this space every Monday from 10am -Zpm
and anyone is welcomed. They provide positive energy and their wonderful creativity to
our program.

The second floor of The Henderson was reserved for the older grades. It has also been
said that the boys used one stairwell and the girls used the other, they never used the
same stairwell. The second floor also housed what was once the gymnasium area and
the stage where the children could perform. That auditorium has been restored and can
seat up to 80 people. This space is used for small venue performances including
storytelling, music, lectures, improv, as well as comedy and theatre. The

Summit Center for Higher Education also occupies this second floor, which is an exciting
and unique partnership with Wytheville Community College WCC offers classes and
distance learning opportunities for Smyth and Washington Counties.

In the basement of the schoolhouse, there used to be the cafeteria. There has not been
too much information revealed about the rest of the space. In part, this space was used
to heat the building, the old coal shuttle still exists, although it has since been sealed
from the outside of the building. The construction workers talked about the presence of
a ghost, we have endearingly named him “Gus” and regard Gus as a former custodian at
the school back when it began in the early 1900’s. Gus will only get riled up if he thinks
something isn’t being taken care of correctly! He can be heard sweeping the floor at
night and every once in a while, you can hear his keys rattle.

The Lutherie, which we fondly call “Wayne’s World” is where the cafeteria was said to
be situated. Connected to the Lutherie through the east side of the school, is the wood
shop. Both of these shops are fully equipped for Lutherie, wood turning, wood working,
and wood carving.



AGENDA

FurLL COMMISSION

Thursday, October 10, 2019

10:30 A.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel
107 East Main Street

Marion, VA

Welcome and Call to Order

Call of the Roll

Approval of 6/6/19 minutes
Executive Committee

Education Committee

Research &Development Committee

Southside Economic Development
Committee

Southwest Economic Development
Committee

TROF Committee

TROF Update

Other Business

Scheduling of January 2020 meeting

Public Comments

Adjournment

The Honorable Terry G. Kilgore, Chairman
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director

(published on website)

The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chairman
The Honorable Frank Ruff, Chairman

The Honorable Kathy Byron, Chairman
The Honorable Tommy Wright, Chairman

The Honorable Bill Carrico, Chairman

The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chairman
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director



AGENDA

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Wednesday, October 9, 2019

1:00 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel
107 East Main Street

Marion, VA

Welcome and Call to Order
Call of the Roll
Approval of the 4/16/19 Minutes

HEMP Regulatory Update
and Discussion

MPower VA #3473 De-obligation
New Investment Strategy

Regional Office Leadership Strategy
Small Towns Initiative Update
Other Business

Public Comments

Adjournment

The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chairman
Evan Feinman, Executive Director
(published on website)

Kevin Schmidt, Director, Policy Planning &
Research, VDACS

Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director



W Tobacco Commission
%VCC Investment with VCC

\"qumlo Community Capital

Mission Alignment:

VCC and the Tobacco Commission share similar missions to promote Virginia ds d
vibrant place in which to live/work and where all citizens have abundant
opportunities to thrive. The Tobacco Commission can increase returns in their
investment portfolio and further leverage its social impact in Virginia by investing
with VCC and VCC Bank.

Common Stock Investment in VCC Bank

Characteristics: Liquidity: Current Investors:
Anticipated annual « Designated liquidity fund « Carter Bank & Trust
dividend payout ratio of of $1,000,000 held by « High net worth
20-30% depending on VCC for the purpose of individuals
bank profitability purchasing shares of « Richmond Memorial

. Potential for appreciation VCC Bank Common Health Foundation
of sfock value RlGoKR o « Richmond Association of

« Since introduction to the . Addl’ﬂonS_TFbTh? Ilqdugfv Realtors
market in 2018, Class B reserve will oe runae o NP :
Common Stock investors through Class A ‘g/grgr:nif;:gr'\r/heo!oglcol
have realized a total dividends, 99% held by Viraini
return on investment of VCC * Virginia Affordable

) Housing Developers and
approximately 13.25% as + Preferred and Class B PEHTEH
of June 30, 2019 dividends paid before .
any Class A dividends « VCC Senior Leaders &
are issued Board

Anhcupcted dnnual dlwdend payout ratio of 20-30% plus potenhal appreciation of value

Projected Social Impact per $1,000,000 Common Stock

Investment
$1,000,000 Tier 1 Capital S Loan = $8,000,000
X Leverage Factor of 8 # Projects = 80+
= $8,000,000 to lend/invest in the # Housing Units = 12,000+
Tobacco Commission Regions # Jobs = 1,000+
*over a 5 year period ~eveC FDIG -@

b = LY

VCC’s Impact in the Tobacco Commission Footprint

A Affordable housing - Jobs created &
ﬁ units developed: 231 retained: 911

Number of loans —==_ |Lending capital
issued: 94 E provided: $86,000,000




=\ZVCC  Collaborative Investment Strategy
V(CC's Social Impact in the Tobacco Region

Western Front Hotel, St. Paul Weaver Manor, Emporia Beale's Brewery, Bedford
Loan Amount: $2.225 million Loan amount: $2.365 Million Loan amount: $700k
Project type: Construction Project type: Construction Loan, Low- Project type: Construction
Loan income Housing Tax Credit Funding Loan

State-wide Impactin 2018

$543

MILLION

in loan
originations
Since 2006

About VCC:

VCC is a 13-year old nonprofit financial services holding company and Community
Development Financial Institution (CDFI). VCC has a wholly owned, for-profit
subsidiary, VCC Bank, which is a state-chartered, FDIC insured bank and CDF. In
2015, VCC Bank was the nation’s first regulated bank fo become a Benefit
Corporation under state statute. As of December 31, 2018, VCC has consolidated
assets under management of approximately $363 million and lends approximately
$70-75 million in new loans each year.

VCC is uniquely situated to leverage investments info VCC and VCC Bank for
greater community impact throughout Virginia. Investments in Program Related
Investments (PRIs), Local Impact Investment Opportunity Notes (LION Notes), Equity
Investments, Grants and FDIC Insured Deposits serve as the lending capital for loans
that create living wage jobs for Virginians; enhance the quality of life by providing
access to affordable housing, fresh foods and health care; and promote community
revitalization and economic growth.



\ZVCC |nvestment in VCC Bank Common Stock

Virginia Community Capital

Investment Structure

$7M grant to
V@@ ®
Tobacco Commission Purchase
VCC Bank
Stock

Appreciation

Dividends of Stock
Value*®

VCC Bank Class B Non-voting Common Stock
(1,086 shares at $6,440 per share)

« Target dividend payout ratfio = 20-30% of net income
- Prior year average dividend yield fo investors was +3%

« Average annual appreciation of book value = 3.50% (2010-
2018).

« 2018 appreciation of book value = 8.50%

*If $7M were invested today with an average annual appreciation of
value of 3.5%, in 10 years (compounded) the investment could be
worth $9.9M. Alternative scenario - potential periodic *harvesting' of
appreciation of stock value (subject fo VCCB Board Approval).



AGENDA

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Thursday, October 10, 2019
10:00 A.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel
107 East Main Street

Marion, VA
Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Frank M. Ruff, Chairman
Call of the Roll Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
Approval of the 5/29/19 Minutes (published on website)
SVAM / COE #3100 Extension Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
Request
Other Business Sarah Capps, Southern Office — Grants
Extension Request Program Administrator

Public Comments

Adjournment



Education Committee
October 2019

The Education Committee will meet at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, October 10" in Marion to discuss
two grant extension requests from Advanced Manufactuting Centers of Excellence, described
below:

Southwest Virginia Alliance for Manufacturing
Southwest Vitginia Advanced Manufacturing Center of Excellence (#3100)
Start Date: September 23, 2015 - Current End Date: September 23, 2019

Request for Extension into 5" Year

Staff Summary & Comments: The SVAM Center of Excellence (SVAM-CoE) requests an
additional one-year extension on the COE grant, extending the grant into a 5" year. SVAM’s
ixecutive Ditectot, Stephanie Surrett has indicated the extension is necessary to fully expend grant
funds for the COE’s programming. The current balance on the TRRC project account is $412,084
ot 13% of the original $3.169 million grand award. Staff has received a project budget detailing the
allocations of the remaining funds for the COE activities. With the impending end of this grant, the
SVAM-COE has recently worked with GENEDGE to gain further insight on the COE’s value to
the local and regional manufacturing industry and how the COE can continue to growth as an
otganization, with ideas on paths the COE could take to be sustainable past the end of the
Commission’s funding. Staff has reviewed the repott-out material from the COE’s work with
GENEDGE and agrees it provides the key information on what steps need to be taken to be
financial sustainable in the future. Howevet, information from GENEDGE is not meant to take the
place of an actual plan (backed up by a pro forma) for how the COE will actually be sustainable. In
prepating for this extension request, staff requested information on how the COE planned to
implement the recommendations from GENEDGE and how such plans would result in adequate
revenue for sustainability. Staff has not received such information and feels that the grant should be
extended only long enough to close out existing Commission funded programming, Staff suppotts
approval of a final extension to April 1, 2020.

Staff tecommends approval of a final extension to April 1, 2020.

New College Institute

New College Institute Center of Excellence (#2582)

Start Date: May 22, 2014 - Cuttent End Date: September 22, 2019
Request for Extension into 7" Year

Staff Summary & Comments: NCI requests an additional one-year extension on the Phase 1 COE
grant, extending the grant into a 7" yeat. NCD’s Interim Executive Ditectot, Karen Jackson indicated
the extension was necessaty due to unexpected staff turnover during the project period. NCI staff
changes include a new Cootdinator for Advanced Manufacturing position funded by the grant, a o
staff position that is in the process of being filled, resignation of NCI’s cootdinator for
administration of funding, and changes in executive ditector position. This grant was under a freeze
for a year from September 20, 2017 until October 1, 2018, with the exception of critical operation



costs including funding of positions being allowed for reimbursement. This freeze coincided with
the transfer of the grant from the original grantee, New College Foundation, to New College
Institute. The cutrent balance on the TRRC project account is $743,826, including a $27,434.60
refund payment NCI indicated was issued on Octobet 3, to cottect an accounting error. While the
$743K balance is 38% of the original $2 million grant award, staff received a detailed project budget
with allocations of remaining funds for COE development activities at NCI and PHCC.
Recognizing the complexity of development of the COE, the freeze that occurred and the changes
in personnel, TRRC staff supports approval of an additional one-year extension to allow additional
time to complete approved work.

Staff recommends approval of an extension to September 22, 2020.



AGENDA

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Thursday, October 10, 2019
9:30 A.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel

107 East Main Street
Marion, VA
Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Kathy Byron, Chairman
Call of the Roll Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
Approval of the 6/5/19 Minutes (published on website)
Signal Tape Proposal Tim Pfohl, Grants Director
Other Business Tim Pfohl, Grants Director

Extension Request

Public Comments

Adjournment



FY2020 Research & Development
October 10, 2019

At the direction of the R&D Committee at its June meeting, Staff solicited a Phase Two “R&D
Continuation” proposal from a previous grantee, Southwest Higher Education Center Foundation and
beneficiary company, Excavation Alest Systems, which submitted that grant proposal to the Commission
in mid-August. A summary with Staff Comments/Recommendation, as well as one Other Business R&D
agenda item, are described below:

Southwest Virginia Higher Education Center Foundation
SignalTape Product Line Extensions and Enhancements (#3584)
$2,000,000 Requested

Application Content Provided by Applicant:

Executive Summary: EAS received a Phase I R&D grant for a proposed damage prevention system
consisting of discrete devices containing smoke genetators that when struck by an excavator would emit
brightly coloted smoke. EAS’s R&D process led to the development of a Kevlar reinforced matker tape
that consistently pulls to the surface providing a sufficient warning at a lower cost and prioritized its
development and commercialization. To date EAS has sold almost 600,000’ of SignalTape and counts
industry leading companies such as Kinder Morgan and Amazon as customers. EAS’s larger customets
continue to exptess intetest in the original smoke generating product to protect their highest value assets.
EAS proposes a continuation project to complete development of SmokeTape and pursue additional
product line extension (SignalTape Transmission & BoreTrace) and manufactuting R&D efforts.
Successful execution of the proposed R&D efforts will significantly inctease revenue and create high-
paying jobs in the tobacco region of Virginia.

Previous Funding Status for Research and Development Continuation Application: EAS’s was
established to develop innovative damage prevention solutions that specifically address some of industry’s
biggest challenges. The Phase I proposal focused on the development a system consisting of discrete
smoke generating devices that when struck by an excavator would emit brightly colored smoke. Feedback
from potential customers about the potential high-cost and installation complexities resulted in EAS
refocusing the effort to develop the simplest most cost-effective product that addresses the two gaps in
cutrent damage prevention systems: alerting the operator directly and not relying on any operator
compliance. As a result, EAS designed and commercialized SignalTape which addresses both of these
issues in a cost-effective and industty familiar form factor. EAS’s larger customers continue to express
interest in the original smoke generating product to protect their highest value assets. EAS proposes a
continuation project to complete development of SmokeTape and pursue additional product line
extensions and manufactuting R&D efforts.

Research & Development Opportunity: New Product R&D:

SmokeTape: In addition to a high-strength core material SmokeTape contains smoke generators that emit
a large cloud of brightly coloted smoke when disturbed by an excavator. Several key customers continue to
express interest in SmokeTape for their high-value assets including Dominion, Centerpoint, Black Hills,
PG&F, and Heath Consultants.

BoreTrace: Many utilities are increasingly being installed via horizontal boring. While this provides a cost-
effective mechanism for utility installation, the tracer wire required to locate the utility is often damaged

TRRC R&D Committee — October 2019



during installation. Dominion engineers expressed interest in braiding out high-strength core materials
around standard tracer wite to protect it duting boring installations.

SignalTape Product Line Extension R&D: Core Material with Increased Abrasion Resistance: A
combination of tensile, shear and abrasive forces contribute to the performance of the Signallape core
material. Preliminary testing has shown that coating the lowet-cost polyestet with an anti-abrasive coating
improves performance to be greater than that of the more expensive Kevlar. The proposed research would
test vatious coatings to optimize cost vs. performance. EAS plans to explote working with DVTIL, Inc.
who specializes in coating fibets and is another Tobacco Commission R&D grant recipient.

SignalTape Transmission: Dominion has an application on transmission pipelines for 36” SignalTape
that would tequite it to function effectively buried 4’ deep. Additional core material of increased width
needs to be embedded for SignalTape to function effectively at that depth. EAS would also develop a re-
spooler to join multiple 12 rolls together to produce 36” SignalTape.

Double Boting Installation: Amazon Web Services (AWS) currently requires SignalTape on all open-
trench installations; however only about 30% of their fiber installations are open-trench. EAS plans to
develop either a method for double boring ot a modification to boting equipment that would facilitate
installation of SignalTape on all AWS fiber installations.

Manufacturing R&D: Automated integration of magnets and RFIDs: RFID units and Magnets are
currently used as alternatives to tracer wire to locate buried utilities. Several customers have had us
integrate them into SignalTape for ease of installation. The proposed R&D would design and procute an
automated module to add to our production machine to facilitate production of SignalTape with
embedded RFIDs or magnets.

Vertical Integration of Core Material: The cote material accounts for a majority of SignalTape COGS.
Putchasing looms and weaving our own cote material will reduce our COGS and allow us to control more
of the production process including testing alternative weave structures. Looming out own core material
will also facilitate production of BoreTtace reinforced tracer wires.

Additional Film Printing and Production Machine Capacity: EAS will continue to make investments
additional production equipment to augment our current production capabilities including additional
digital ptinter and production machine capacity.

Staff Comments & Recommendation: Staff continues to discuss specifics of this request with the
applicants, who have recently provided a reduced $1.5M proposal that removes the double boting product
development and thereby reduces the budget lines for personnel (now $590K), research supplies/materials
(now 484K) and equipment (now $313K). EAS repotts it has raised a $2M Series B round of matching
funds primarily from Virginia based angel investors which, along with sales revenue, would provide the
required matching funds. EAS has two approved US patents as well as patents in Canada and the EU, with
another 28 domestic and international applications pending. It provided a list of customer ordets for
neatly 600,000 feet of Signaltape sold to date, with strong matket interest in its products from an array of
utility companies, distributors and other customers identified through aggressive trade show marketing.
EAS is considering sites in Bedford for a new manufacturing facility, and plans to retain its current
Buckingham site as a R&D/prototyping facility. Outcomes ate listed as 10 jobs during the research phase
and 45 jobs in the commercialization phase, averaging $42K in salaties/wages. As Staff continues to
review the revised budget, a Staff recommendation will be provided at the Committee meeting on
October 10"

TRRC R&D Committee — October 2019



OTHER BUSINESS

University of Virginia
Fermata, LLC V2G Project (#2831)
Fifth Year Extension

The Commission apptoved this §2M grant to UVA in May 2014 to assist the development of Fermata’s
“vehicle-to-grid” bi-directional electric vehicle charger technology. To date neatly $1.5M of the grant has
been released to initially construct a handful of chargers fot testing and validation. A second round of
charger construction included 25 next-generation units, and Fermata has purchased charger components
and is now awaiting Underwriter Labotatoty cettification prior to a 100-unit build. Chatlottesville-based
Fermata has partnered with EI'T' in Danville for the charger assembly work. Extension is required to allow
time for UL apptoval and completion of the 100-unit build to provide additional demonstration with
partners that include Nissan and Tokyo Electric Power Company (see www.fermataenergy.com).

Staff recommends a sixth year extension to September 22, 2020.

TRRC R&D Committee — October 2019



SOUTHSIDE ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE



FY2020 Southside Economic Development

Committee Recommendations

September 30, 2019

Staff announced a July 25" due date for proposals to the FY2020 Southside Economic
Development program. Ten requests were teceived, two of which have subsequently been
withdrawn by the applicants. Executive Summaties and Staff Comments/Recommendations are
provided below for the eight active requests. The Committee met Septembet 30" at the Prizery in

South Boston to act on these requests.

Req ; S0 ; , Allocation || Requested | Committee
4 Locality Otganization Project Title Avadlable | Amount | Recomiinciids
3574 County of Bedford Meade Road Extension $200.762 $200,762
Bedford National D-DAY National D-Day Memortial $538,430
3577 Memorial Visitor Access and Site $538,430 $234,200
Foundation LTD Improvements
Fiberight Building Purchase
3575 Brunswick County located in US 58 Industrial $730,000 $730,000
Park
Branswick | Brynswick County $3,402,300
Industrial Sledge and Barkley
e Development Redevelopment Project ¥i1,200 $7ka00
Authority
Olde Dominion L
3582 Agticultural Land Acquisition for Future $258,500 |  $258,500
. Business Expansion
Pittsylvania | Foundation, Inc. 6,861,956
3580 Pittsylvania County SVMP Site Enhancement $500,000 $500,000
Total (6 funding recommendations) $2,828,592 $1,995,362

BEDFORD (2 proposals for allocation of $538,430)

Bedford, County of
Meade Road Extension (#3574)
$200,762 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Bedford County EDA will execute the extension of
Meade Road in New London Business & Technology Centet in order to accommodate the entrance
to the 40,000 square foot shell building currently under construction on Lot 7 and future
construction pro]ect(s) on Lot 5. Curtently, Meade Road is not paved beyond the roundabout in the
patk and VDOT requites this Road extension in order receive a cettificate of occupancy for the shell

I'Y20 Southside Economic Development

— Committee Recommendations - September 2019




building on Lot 7. It will also provide a professional and appealing aesthetic to the entrances to the
lots.

Staff Comments: Grant funds are requested for road improvements tequired by VDOT to provide
access to a 40,000 squate foot shell building in the New London Business & Technology Center.
The shell building is curtently under construction on Lot 7 of the industrial patk, with funding from
a $1.37 million SSED grant approved in Januaty 2019. The road improvements will also provide
access to Lot 5. The building is intended to accommodate an advanced manufactuting employer
with ~ 75 jobs with $45,000 average salary, and $2 million private capital investment. The County
currently has a European-based company, Project Installation, with operations in the US and a
connection to the region, that plans to commit to the location. A TROF application has not yet been
submitted as final job numbers and investment are still being determined. The project timeline
provides for statt of construction in October 2019; with waterline installation, paving, sidewalks and
road construction to be completed by December 2019. Bedford EDA has committed the $200,762
Match funds providing $23,387 local funding for A&E and §177,374 for property & improvements.
A $343,760 estimate from Price Construction was provided to support the project costs, and county
staff indicated the additional $34K in the construction budget is to suppott costs not included in the
Price estimate (permits, fees, exporting ditt, removal of rock, etc) as well as any price escalation
since the May estimate. Staff requested and received confitmation that the project does not qualify
for VDOT Access Road funding. Staff recommends approval of the request contingent on TRRC
funds not exceeding 50% of direct incurred costs.

Committee tecommends a grant award of $200,762 to support up to 50% of construction
costs.

National D-DAY Memotial Foundation LTD
National D-Day Memorial Visitor Access and Site Improvements (#3577)
$538,430 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: ‘The National D-Day Memotial Foundation
requests funding for completion of site grading and the couttyard area of the planned educational
complex. These improvements will suppott a larger capital project to add a Welcome Center &
Museum, Education & Event Center, an outdoot amphitheater, and other amenities envisioned in
out recently adopted Master Plan. This project will improve the visitors' experience, increase
regional tourism, and transform the Memorial into a true yeat-round destination. In turn, this will
grow visitation, cteate more jobs at the Memorial, and inject mote money into Vitginia’s economy.

Staff Comments: This request involves site development in an initial $2 million phase of
implementing an $18 million master plan to add a visitor welcome centet and museum, education
and event center and outdoor amphitheater. A visually compelling Master Plan was provided that
shows the new buildings arranged around a new entrance courtyard and designed in the style of a
Normandy village. Cuttent visitation is reported to be approximately 44,600 annually, with neatly
half of those visitors coming from out-of-state, and another one-quattet coming from Virginia
locations that are mote than one hour away from Bedford. However, the proposal states that the
Memotial is cutrently an outdoor attraction that suffers from low visitation during inclement
weather. The addition of indoot educational spaces would presumably enhance yeat-round visitation
to 2 unique destination that meets the TRRC threshold of having name recognition in national and
international markets. The applicant estimates that visitation would increase by an additional
20,000+ annually when the new facilities ate fully operational. At the time of application more than
$2.6 million is repotted to be comtnitted for the Master Plan implementation, with one-third of the
$18 million goal anticipated to be committed by year-end 2019. A future request to suppozt

FY20 Southside Economic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



construction of the new buildings is indicated. The specific uses of funds requested in this phase
include clearing, grading, paving of roads, sidewalks and parking, etc. Given that this proposal
tequests 100% of the funds cutrently available in the SSED allocation for projects in Bedford, Staff
suggests that consideration of 50% of the costs to do cleating and grading for the new sttuctures (ie.
50% of $468,400) would be an approptiate form of suppott for facilities that will enable increased
visitation, while allowing a pottion of the Bedford allocation to be made available for the County's
concurtrent request for access road improvements in the New London Technology Park.

Committee recommends a grant award of $234,200.

BRUNSWICK (2 proposals for allocation of $3,402,300)

Brunswick County
Fiberight Building Purchase located in US 58 Industrial Park (#3575)

$730,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The County of Brunswick wish to purchase the
Fiberite Building located in the County Industrial Patk at 853 Industrial Park Drive. This building
will provide the County the oppottunity to display approximate 50,000 square foot building on 10
actes to potential prospects who seek site ready structures. The building is a pre-engineered metal
building consisting of a high bay manufacturing area and a low bay attached office area. The
purchase and repair of the site will assist the County initiative to expand and grow economic
development for the region. It will further aid in the attraction of targeted industries and result in
measutable employment and private capital investment. This building offers specific attributes being
considered by many prospects: location and access to highways, access to the potts and local aitport,
and relatively low taxes and land costs.

Staff Comments: Grant funds are requested to support 50% of the acquisition and improvements
costs for the former Fiberight Building at 853 Industrial Park Drive in the Brunswick County
Industrial Patk. The property includes the 50,000 sq. ft. building and 10 acte site, providing a site
ready building for marketing to prospects. The pre-engineered metal building has a high-bay
manufacturing area and low-bay office area. The building will be marketed for distribution, logistics,
and manufacturing and would meet the needs of several prospects that the county has worked with
over the last 18 months. The county contracted with Timmons Group to study the sttuctural needs
and improvements of the building and received a detailed estimate of $607,500 in needed repairs.
The tax assessment value of the property is $1,268,677, and county staff indicates they have
negotiated a $730,000 putchase price. The additional funding in the total project budget will be used
towatd building improvements including the repaits in the estimate from Timmons. The applicant
identified Project Dragon with potential for creation of 300 jobs averaging $50,000 for potential
economic impact of the project. While staff questioned whether this building would be large enough
to accommodate this number of manufacturing jobs (county staff clarified that the 300 jobs would
be multiple shifts), it is recognized that the site does provide room for expansion, and this
opporttunity for a marketable building/site is substantially less than cost for new construction. The
county does not cuttently have a building this size to market to potential prospects. Staff is
suppottive of this request and recommends approval of a $730,000 grant award to support up to
50% of costs fot acquisition and improvements.

Committee recommends a grant award of $730,000 to support up to 50% of costs for
acquisition and improvements to this building.

Y20 Southside Economic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



Brunswick County Industrial Development Authority
Sledge and Barkley Redevelopment Project (#3576)
$71,900 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: The Brunswick County IDA (BCIDA) is seeking
$71,900 to off-set costs for three activities to assist prospective businesses to evaluate the benefits of
the Sledge and Barkley property. These activities include: 1) Engineering & Architectural study with
full architectural plans, 2) Historic Presetvation Tax Incentive ptogram Part 1&2 applications, and 3)
Matketing materials from gathered information to showcase mixed-use concepts for redevelopment
of the Sledge & Barkley property. The Sledge and Barkley Building, a three-stoty building
constructed in 1885, located at 307 N. Main Street, is situated in the center of the commercial block
of Lawrenceville. In May 2019, the BCIDA purchased the propetty.

Staff Comments: The Town of Lawrenceville has suffered majot economic losses in recent years
such as the closing of industties, retail businesses and St. Paul's College, ptesenting economic
development challenges for the Town and Brunswick County that are escalated by the significant
number of highly visible vacant and underutilized downtown buildings and the lack of business
activity. As one of the oldest buildings situated near the center of the historic downtown, the Sledge
& Batkley building is located in a ptime commercial block, and it's redevelopment potential offets a
beacon of hope for bringing commerce and business back to the community. The Brunswick
County IDA invested in acquisition of the building earlier this year, and this project is focused on
procuring professional services to evaluate the building condition, and development of concept
plans and renderings identified as critical next steps for executing redevelopment of the property.
The three story historic building, constructed in 1885 with a two-patt commertcial block design,
offers 22,000 sq. ft. for mixed use development. A Plan of Development & Feasibility Analysis
completed in 2009 by HDAdvisors, funded by VHDA's MUML program, determined the building
to be in satisfactory condition and proposed a plan for commercial and residential development. The
TDA is in the process of evaluating current interests and options for bringing multiple businesses
into the building. The IDA indicates that the first floor with glass storefront could accommodate
retail space, brewery and a restaurant, the second floot will be considered for a business incubator,
co-working or other similar shared office space creating an opportunity for new job opportunities in
the downtown, with a fitness studio or residential and other options being considered for the 3rd
floot. A list of the prospective businesses the IDA is currently in discussion with was provided.
Letters of suppott include Brunswick County. Estimated total project cost is $143,800 with IDA to
provide 50% as local Match. Staff is suppottive of the grant request conditioned on the IDA
evaluating potentials uses of at least two floots of the building for entetprise activities that create job
opportunities and wotk spaces contributing to improving the economy of downtown Lawrenceville,
the cuttent and historic county seat for Brunswick County. Should this building ultimately be
developed primarily for residential use - which is not a TRRC funding priotity - Staff suggests these
funds should be returned to the Commission for future priotity projects.

Committee recommends a grant award of $71,900 to support up to 50% of professional
development contracts.

Y20 Southside Economic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



PITTSYLVANIA (2 proposals for allocation of $6,861,956)

Olde Dominion Agricultural Foundation, Inc.
Land Acquisition for Futute Business Expansion (#3582)
$258,500 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Olde Dominion Agricultural Foundation
(ODAF) has identified and enteted into Purchase Agreements for two (2) parcels of land adjacent to
the Olde Dominion Agricultural Complex (ODAC) site. This presents an urgent, yet exciting,
economic development opportunity for the region, as closing must occur on or before Novembet
30, 2019. The purchase of this land will improve accessibility to the Complex and it’s ever growing
event market, as well as to ODAF’s undeveloped propetty — with mote than 1 mile of railroad
access with Notfolk Southern and areas for two (2) sputs — positioning ODAF for significant future
agricultural business expansion and opportunities, such as aggregation and value-added production.

Staff Comments: This project is for the acquisition of two parcels to expand the Olde Dominion
Agticultural Complex north of the Town of Chatham in central Pittsylvania County. The goal is to
allow for future business expansion and agtricultural related economic development opportunities.
Olde Dominion Agricultural Foundation is a nonprofit organization created to promote and support
local agricultute by offering the complex serving as a region hub for agticulture related educate and
entertainment, a farmers’ market and livestock centet, regional educational programming,
agritourism functions and business meeting space, and a central location for regional economically
beneficial agticultural events. Grant funds will be used toward $325,000 putchase price of a 2.39 acre
patcel with three commercial garage and storage structures and suppotting improvements (formerly
Fast Coast Excavating). The main building constructed in 2009 is a 40° X 60’ steel frame with metal
extetior-- two manual garage doors, HVAC, electric service and sewer system and including a full
bath, kitchen and office space, as well as an attached 20’ X 50” pole shed. The parcel also includes a
40’ X 607 steel frame building with metal siding, concrete floor, electricity and four gatage doots on
each end; and a third building for storage measuting 30° X 48’ with no electricity. The balance of
funds for the putchase contract will come from Match already in hand. Matching funds will also be
used for the $180,000 purchases of a second parcel containing 2.3 actes and a 60’ x 52’ cinder block
building (formerly Shotter Brothers Garage). July 2019 appraisal teports identify the current market
value of the two properties as $341,000 and $190,000 respectively (slightly higher than the purchase
prices agreed to by the sellers). ODAC intends to use the first patcel for development of a food hub
and/or local food aggregation facility, a priotity focus identified in ODAC’s 2017-2020 Strategic
Plan which states, "One economic development oppottunity curtently under considetation, is the
cteation of a food hub for aggregation, cold storage, matketing and distribution of local agricultural
products.”" Development of a central food disttibution facility would provide tegional benefits to the
six county setvice area including Pittsylvania, Halifax, Henry, Franklin, Campbell and Bedford
Counties. The application includes a letter of support from Pittsylvania County. The Commission
previously invested $2.8 million in ODAC under four grants including a FY18 Agribusiness award
of $438K for Phase II Livestock Expansion; as well as providing a $900K grant for watet and sewer
infrastructure. These new acquisitions will allow ODAC to continue expanding its footprint as a
regional hub and allow for continued growth of their events market and increased agribusiness
opportunities on the new patcels. Another significant benefit will be improved access to the
complex off US-29, with a second entry providing direct access to the new patcels and to ODAC’s
larger landholding of undeveloped land adjacent to the railroad. However, as of the date of this
report, the applicant has indicated ongoing recent discussions with potential food hub partners, but
has not yet provided quantifiable evidence of producer interest in the facility, or detailed plans for
financing and operating the food hub. While Staff is supportive of the concept, the lack of detailed

Y20 Southside Economic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



plans and outcomes makes a positive recommendation for the property acquisition appeat
ptremature.

Committee recommends a grant award of $258,500.

Pittsylvania County
SVMP Site Enhancement (#3580)
$500,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Pittsylvania County proposes to utilize Southside
Fconomic Development Funds to physically prepare a shovel ready pad site at the Southern Virginia
Multimodal Patls for Project Emotion. Improvements will include clearing, grading, demolition of
slab, storm drainage features, geo-tech work, and rail spur rehabilitation. Project Emotion is a credit
worthy U.S.-based Company that proposes to invest $24M to construct a 220,000 sq. ft. modern
manufacturing facility while creating over 65 new jobs to Vitginia. Match for this project will be
provided by Samet Corporation; a large regional developer, and partner for the Southern Virginia
Multimodal Park. The newly established Staunton River Regional Industrial Facility Authority will
putchase and own impacted propetty ptior to use of any Commission funds.

Staff Comments: Grant funds are requested to support $500,000 of site improvements to create
two shovel-ready pad sites on 25 actes at the Southern Virginia Multimodal Park (the former
Butlington Industries site) in the Town of Hurt. A detailed cost estimate of $1.8 million was
provided, including costs for removing the former Burlington building pad and related structures,
grading and utility work, and installation of lead track and sput for rail service. Development of the
propetty would take place in partnership with the cutrent owner, Samet Cotporation/Hutt Partners
LLC, which specializes in industrial real estate developments. Site improvements are expected to
begin in January 2020 for demolition and removal of the existing slab and the new pad areas being
defined. The newly established Staunton River Regional Industrial Facility Authotity would purchase
and own the property priot to use of any Commission funds, after which Samet would reacquire the
improved site and construct a $10M building on approximately half of the 25 acres under a lease-to-
purchase agreement with the prospect (Project Emotion). Construction of the building is expected
to begin in September 2020. Economic development outcomes are identified as $24 million capital
investment ($10 million building, $14 million machinery and tools) and 65 jobs @ $40,000 plus
benefits, paying above average wage for the county. Outcomes are based on Project Emotion, an
existing well-established company wanting to expand in the region. The county has received a Letter
of Intent from the company to locate theit manufactuting operation at this site. A TROF estimate
for a §435K grant incentive and a $435K loan for a total of $870K was provided in June 2019. Staff
notes that the propetty is currently owned by the private development pattner, and would be
transferred to the RIFA for site development work funded under the grant. Then (per the info
provided by the County) the Emotion portion of the improved acreage will most likely be
transferred back to private ownership ptior to construction of the building by Samet which would
lease it to the prospect. Staff notes the unusual circumstances of providing public funding for a site
intended for private-ownership, and cites the public benefit case for improving a cuttrently-blighted
site in conjunction with a ptivate development pattner that will invest neatly three times the TRRC
request in the needed improvements, in addition to their anticipated involvement in financing
construction of the building for the company, thereby greatly increasing the taxable value of the
property and enabling job creation via Emotion and the second site on the temaining improved
acreage. As with all Commission grants, the project would be tequired to comply with the Security
Interest clause of the Commission's standard grant agreement, which requires written approval by
the Commission's executive ditector for lease or transfer of ownership of Commission funded

FY20 Southside Fconomic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



assets. Furthermore, as the improved site will be generating lease revenue and eventually sales
tevenue, Staff suggests a repayment plan for the proposed TRRC investment be negotiated from
those revenues.

Committee recommends a grant award of $500,000 for site improvement costs, subject to the
commitment of Project Emotion to this site, with a TROF-like petformance agreement
between all parties and adequate protection of the Commission’s secutity interest.

FY20 Southside Economic Development — Committee Recommendations - September 2019



AGENDA

SOUTHWEST ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, October 9, 2019
3:00 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel

107 East Main Street
Marion, VA
Welcome and Call to Order The Honorable Bill Carrico, Chairman
Call of the Roll Evan Feinman, Executive Director
Approval of the 6/5/19 Minutes (published on website)
FY20 Grant Proposals Sara Williams, Southwest Office — Grants
Program Administrator
Other Business Sara Williams, Southwest Office — Grants
Grant Extensions Program Administrator
MPower VA #3473 Update Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Public Comments

Adjournment



FY20 Southwest Economic Development
Summaries & Staff Recommendations

October 2019

The Commission received 14 project proposals in mid-July for the Y2020 Southwest Fconomic
Development program. Executive Summaries and Staff Comments/Recommendations ate included
below. The SWED Committee has a curtent balance of $2.75M to address these proposals:

Req B e ; Requested Staff
4 Organization Project Title Aers ok Recoininanis
3567 | Town of Big Stone Gap ISV;‘;ETI Gomplex Co-Wark $250,263 $250,263
Buchanan County ] .
457651 | Tndusitial Denalopens | = oean sy Amplrthoder $57,000 $57,000
P Project - Initial Design Fee
Authority
. Floyd Light Industrial Building
3558 | Floyd County EDA 2l il CorvenGampig $497.475 $497,475
; Recreation Cluster
3570 | Frends of Southwest | iy 0o ment, Connectivity, $330,000 $330,000
Virginia ) o
and Sustainability
Industtial Development
3566 | Authotity of Dickenson | Thunder River Campground $200,000 $0
County
. . r Request exceeds
3563 | Lincoln Memorial CIVD-CMN Y ateriicy $4.018490 | available balance -
University Education Building - .
o recommendation
Millwald Theatre Restoration
3560 | Millwald Theatte, Inc. & Economic Revitalization $200,000 $160,000
Project
. Creating a Sportmans
3564 Southw-est Reggongl Economy for Southwest $250,000 $125,000
Recteation Authority SSiRes
Virginia
Restoration/Rehabilitation of
3559 | Town of Lebanon the Historic Russell Theatet $200,000 Table
3569 | Town of St. Paul Lyric Project, Phase 1T $349,600 $349,600
Tazewell County ] )
3557 | Tndustrsl Dwelopmatt | oo BmLaLs efScuthyest $225,000 VRA loan
; Virginia Corporation
Authority
; . Co UVa-Wise Southwest
3571 | University of Virginia FOURSight $1,005,127.89 Table
Vitginia's Heritage
3568 | Music Trail: The The Crooked Road On Tour $100,000 $0
Crooked Road
3562 | Wythe County APEX Ancillatry Building $100,000 $100,000
Total (14 requests, 8 funding recommendations) $7,782,956 $1,869,338

Y20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019




Town of Big Stone Gap
Mutual Complex Co-Work Space (#3567)
$250,263 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: As patt of the cuttent renovation of the former Mutual
Pharmacy propetty into a multi-use dining/housing/entrepreneurial facility, the Town of Big Stone Gap
proposes to construct roughly 1,600 squate feet of entrepreneurial co-working space in the building’s
basement level. The Town intends to model its co-working space after successful such spaces in other,
varyingly sized localities, and is presently designing its co-working operations program to fit within this
unique downtown space.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request completes an ongoing multi-year effort, utilizing a
variety of funding sources, to rehabilitate the Mutual Pharmacy building located in downtown Big Stone
Gap and owned by the Town’s Redevelopment and Housing Authority. The propetty will be redeveloped
into a multi-use dining, housing and entrepreneurial facility. Big Stone Gap has undergone a successful
downtown revitalization project focused on creating an environment that facilitates the success of existing
and new businesses. The building is adjacent to the Town’s visitor center (pattially funded with a previous
SWED grant) and occupies a prominent location in the downtown area. The main floor of the building
will be occupied by a restaurant while the upper floots will be converted to apartments. The funds
requested in this application will be used to construct an approximately 1,600 SF enttepreneurial co-
working space in the building’s basement level. The space will offer desks, conference rooms, high speed
witeless internet, and private offices/meeting space sufficient to serve ten participants. While no formal
survey of potential tenants have been conducted, the application did provide anecdotal evidence of
demand for this type of space from at least two local entrepreneurs. The remainder of the basement space
will be available to the restaurant operator. The facility will be managed from the Town's visitor center
next door, and will use operating policies modeled after those used by a similar facility in Macon, GA. The
Town has a close relationship with the GA locality and has worked with New Town Macon as a model to
implement several projects focused on attracting young entrepreneurs. The project has been successful in
securing funding from several soutces including ARC ($500,000), DHCD-IRF ($475,000), VEDP/VDEQ
Brownfields Assistance Funds ($94,398) and VCEDA ($90,000). Despite these efforts there remains a
significant gap to achieve the approximately $2.4M total funding need. A loan request for up to $1M will
be submitted to the Virginia Housing Development Authority to cover upper story housing and first story
restaurant space funding shortfalls. Cost estimates wete provided to document the use of the $250,263
requested in this application. While the majority of these funds do appear to be intended for
improvements to the basement atea, a portion of the request (approximately $40k) would be used for
imptrovements to the roof and gutter system which is reportedly needed to correct existing water issues in
the basement to make it suitable for this type of use. This ptoject aligns will other initiatives cutrently
being developed for the region including the Small Towns Initiative which is being developed by TRRC
Staff. While this could be seen as a somewhat large investment in an entrepreneurial space with modest
outcomes in new job creation and ptivate investment, Staff views this as an opportunity to suppozt this as
a pilot effort that will bettet inform program guidelines for the upcoming TRRC Small Towns program.

Staff recommends a grant award of $250,263.

Buchanan County Industrial Development Authority
Southern Gap Amphitheater Project - Initial Design Fee (#3565)
$57,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The goal of the Southern Gap Amphitheater Project is to
construct a commercial-grade amphitheater (the “Amphitheater”) at Southern Gap in Buchanan County,
Virginia. The Ampbhitheater is conceived to be a venue constructed to hold 2,000 guests, with a grassy hill

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



behind it that can accommodate an additional 2,000, for a total max capacity of 4,000 guests. The
Amphitheater will host live music performances, film screenings, speaking engagements, weddings, spotts
and corporate events. At the highest level, the Amphitheater will transition through two-separate phases:
(i) development and construction, and (if) operation. The key steps to complete this project are 1)
Fundraising for Initial Design Phase 2) Initial Design Phase 3) Fundraising for Cost of Construction 4)
Construction Documentation Design Phase 5) Construction. We ate currently applying for funds to help
cover the cost of the Initial Design Phase.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request, submitted by the Buchanan County IDA, on
behalf of a newly formed non-ptofit, would facilitate initial design of a 4,000 guest capacity amphitheater
at Southern Gap. The IDA, which will have no direct role in managing the venue, deeded 13 acres of land
to the non-profit (Sunset Holler, Inc.) on August 19, 2019. The otganization also obtained their official
IRS non-profit certification in August. The application contains an impressive business plan and feasibility
study prepated by Chatlottesville-based VMDO architects, the apparent former employet of one of the
project’s leaders. VMDO has quoted the design phase at $105,520 with an additional $9,200 in expenses to
covet costs pettaining to site visits and other supporting expenses. The total cost of the design phase is
$114,720 with half of that amount tequested from TRRC in this application. Matching funds will be
sought from a variety of soutces including The McGlothlin Foundation, The United Foundation, and
VCEDA. Funding opportunities such as the DMME Abandoned Mine Land program will likely be sought
for the consttuction phase. The feasibility study estimates that construction will average $2.8M and the
application indicates that it is likely additional funding will be requested from TRRC for that phase of the
project. The venue will create 8 direct jobs with an average salary of $54,166. During the first year of
operations 64,000 visitors ate projected, resulting in neatly $1.5M in revenue from ticket sales. To
accomplish this, the venue would need to host 16 events at full capacity which may be ambitious for a
brand new venue with a limited reputation. The project’s feasibility study also cites several factors which
could inhibit the venue’s ability to be sustainable during the first years of operation. None the less, an
outdoor performance venue - if successfully funded - would enable Buchanan County to extend the stay
and spending of visitors to the Speathead's Coal Canyon trail, and attract additional non-trail visitors for
cultural events. The application indicates that VMDO will be petforming the design work however, given
the close association between that otganization and this project’s leadership, any award made by TRRC
should contain the condition that the project use a competitive procurement process to select the most
appropriate firm.

Staff recommends a grant award of $57,000 for up to 50% of contractual design wotk conditioned
upon documentation of a competitive procurement process to select the most approptiate firm.

Floyd County EDA
Floyd Light Industtial Building and Growth Center Campus (#3558)
$497,475 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: This project will develop an approximately 13,000 SF
light industrial building for sale or lease in the Floyd Regional Commetce Center and turn the test of the
5.5-rough-graded pad into a mini-campus for other light industrial building sites (Floyd Growth Center
Campus). We lack light industrial spaces and sites. The Floyd Innovation Centet is full (and isn't
compatible with loud uses), and the last three viable vacant industtial buildings near the Town of Floyd
have been bought by expanding companies in the past few months. Having building space available near
Floyd, on public water and sewer, fiber, with 3-phase powet, and with good truck access is essential to get
prospects to visit and to work with local businesses in need of larger facilities. This is an integral part of
our strategy to grow and attract metal working and related companies and increase wages. County will pay
engineeting and start immediately.

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to support expansion and additional
development of the Floyd Regional Commerce Center to accommodate recruitment of light industrial
businesses. In 2017 the Commission awarded $420,696 to supportt the expansion of utility service to these
building pads. There ate cutrently no vacant industrial buildings available in the Town of Floyd, which has
hindered response to several inquities from potential companies needing space in the area. The proposed
project will develop an approximately 13,000 SF building on one of the two remaining rough graded
patcels (Lot 4) in the Commerce Center. The building will be move-in-ready, with two separate spaces that
could be further divided if needed. Both spaces will have access to a loading dock and potential for bay
doors if needed. The remaining 4+ actes will be developed in smaller quatter- to 2-acre tnini-sites that
could be developed ot sold to new businesses. The new spaces could accommodate up to 70,000 SF of
total building space across multiple buildings with the potential to house 100 employees. The proposed
building would accommodate 35 of these. Additionally $7-8M in private investment related to building
construction and over $10M in equipment investment could result from the expansion. Matching funds
are committed from the Floyd County Board of Supervisors which has procured financing for $3.5M of
economic development construction projects. A portion of this will be used for stormwater management
upgrades at the Commerce Center to meet new DEQ requirements necessary to accommodate additional
growth, The remainder ($3.36M) will be used to support the Lot 4 development activitics proposed in this
application. Cost estimates were provided from Draper Aden and Thompson and Litton to justify the total
$3,858,325 project budget. While this is a large request relative to the funding available for the SWED
Program, it is extremely well leveraged through this commitment of locally procutred debt financing. As
such, and given the cutrent interest from prospective occupants with resulting new job creation and new
taxable ptivate investment, this proposal aligns strongly with SWED objectives and received the highest
score in this funding round.

Staff recommends a grant award of $497,475.

Friends of Southwest Virginia
Recreation Cluster Development, Connectivity, and Sustainability (7#3570)
$330,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: “Recreation Cluster Development, Connectivity, and
Sustainability” will construct new outdoor recreation assets and create plans for long-term development
and sustainability of this industry cluster while identifying feasible physical and programmatic connections
to enhance the overall economy of the Cumberland Plateau and Mount Rogets regions through continued
and sustainable economic development in the outdoor recreation cluster. Outcomes include: Consttuction
of eight trails and three river access points to attract visitor revenues from outside of the tobacco region.
Two sepatate, yet interconnected, master development plans for long-term economic sustainability of the
historic Vitginia Creepet Trail and the Mendota Tail, currently under construction, to suppott economic
diversification of the Outdoor Recreation and Tourism Industry Cluster. Two Regional Development and
Sustainability Master Plans for the Economic Diversification within the Outdoor Recreation and Toutism
Industry Cluster that will ensure long-term regional visitor revenues within the Mount Rogers and
Cumbetland Plateau Regions.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This multifaceted regional proposal seeks to develop new
outdoor recteation assets though collaborative planning with patticipating localities and regional
stakeholdets across two Planning Districts, tesulting in diversified and sustainable projects with long
reaching economic impact for the region. Previous grants, not including those awatded for construction
and operation of Heartwood, total $1.25M to this organization. While a portion of these funds have been
allocated for capital projects in the region (High Knob, Damascus, etc.) a substantial amount has also been
used for personnel. In this proposal TRRC funds will be used to create master development plans for both
the Virginia Creeper Trail and the newly formed Mendota Trail - neither of which have been supported by

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



TRRC funding to date. Both systems requite significant capital improvements and the proposed plans will
ensute the financing and implementation of these improvements are conducted in a priotitized and
sustainable mannet. Despite the popularity of the Creeper Trail, relatively little ongoing maintenance has
been performed ovet its 32 year existence, and it is reported that 20+ trestles are in need of significant
maintenance ot complete replacement. Portions of the trail now face risk of closure due to infrastructure
safety issues. An example of the devastating impact these closutes could have is illustrated by the estimated
$250,000 in lost revenue caused by a 5 day trail closute in 2018 due to Hurricane Florence. While the
Mendota Trail recently opened a second section (3+ miles), mote than eight miles are still under
development to complete the 12.5 mile trail, and a similat plan will allow the associated nonprofit,
Mountain Hetitage Inc. to actively seek funding opportunities to continue to expand the trail. Commission
funds are requested to suppott 22% of the Creeper Trail Director’s position ($20K), Mendota Trail Mastet
Development Plan ($63K), and the Vitginia Creeper T’ rail Master Development Plan ($65K). An approved
ARC Area Development Grant ($150K), Vitginia Toutism Cotporation ($10K) and Town of Abingdon
funds ($10I) will serve as match for these items. In addition to the trail master plans, the project will also
develop Regional Master Development Plans for outdoor recteation in the Cumberland Plateau ($75K)
and Mount Rogers ($30K) jutisdictions. These plans will examine the connectivity and sustainability of all
the outdoot recteation products in the areas. The Cumberland Plateau plan will result in an asset analysis
and development plans for the Counties and Towns in the PDC’s region. These plans will seek to unite all
existing assets and developments through physical or programmatic connections, and is a key step to the
creation of SWVA as a regional toutist destination. The ARC grant as well as funding from the Thompson
Charitable Trust will match these initiatives. A large portion ($125K of §150K total funding) of the TCT
funding will be used to construct 8 trails and 3 river access points. Commission funds will be used to
continue to suppott two Toutism & Outdoor Recreation Specialist positions (Friends employees serving
the MRPDC and CPPDC regions). These positions have been supported with previous TRRC funds and
the cutrent request ($77K) will allow the staff to continue their work, while incteasing revenues from the
reotganized Southwest Virginia Cultural Center (formerly Heartwood) will enable Friends to reallocate
funding to sustain these positions in the future. These staff members play a critical role in developing and
managing projects to build capacity within communities. This leadership is especially valuable in smaller
communities and with groups who may not be familiar with infrastructure and systems needed to
successfully implement projects. The staff members are also able to guide these projects to other state
tesoutces and pattner organizations. Many TRRC-supported projects and initiatives have benefited from
their assistance and Staff was pleased to learn that there is an increasing level of collaboration between
Friends and other regional toutism groups (Spearhead, Heart of Appalachia, etc). Friends of Southwest

Vitginia will contribute §67k to suppott the project through additional staff and operating expenses. Ballad

Health will also contribute $50k for the project. While project deliverables primatily are personnel funding
and area master plans, Staff suggests these ate critical building blocks to expand the outdoor recreation
products and destinations that are increasingly attracting visitors to SWVA (as demonstrated in annual
visitor spending data) and resulting in growth of businesses that serve outdoor recreation toutists.

Staff recommends a grant award of $330,000 contingent on the Applicant providing a
sustainability plan for additional funding support for these positions beyond the period of this
grant,

Industrial Development Authority of Dickenson County
Thunder River Campground (#3566)
$200,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Thunder River Campground is located on the Russell
Fork River in the Splashdam area of Haysi, VA. Thunder River first opened in October of 2018. It is
located less than one mile from the the trail head of the Haysi Ridgeview Trail. At this particular trail head
thete are equestrian and ATV/UTV trails. Thunder River currently offers 12 full hook up sites and 10

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



primitive camping sites. You can also find a stage atea for concetts. With the proposed funding they plan
to add partial hook up sites (electric and water only), additional primitive sites, a service/shower building,
camp/general store, playground, swimming pool, and tube/kayak rental. We feel that these amenities
would substantially increase the use of the campground. Our immediate priotity is the setvice building as
we know that we have lost potential campets because of this. This is a destination that can be used year
round.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request was submitted on behalf of a private, family-
owned campground property located approximately one mile from the Haysi Ridgeview Trail trailhead (see
www.thundertivercg.com). The campground, which opened a year ago, offers 12 full hook up sites and 10
primitive camping sites. This request would suppott expansion of the propetty to develop additional
camping sites, store, playground and swimming pool. Additionally a setvice/shower building would be
constructed, although the proposal lacked detailed site plans, construction/equipment estimates, marketing
plan and operating pro forma. Matching funds would come from the owners ($60K) and an intended
$200K grant request to the Cumberland Plateau PDC's new C-Prop program. Duting its first year of
opetations, the campground has reportedly been self sustaining and estimates revenue of $50,000 for 2019.
With the proposed property improvements it is estimated that these revenues could increase to $150,000
annually. Visitation is projected to double (250 to 500) and an additional 11 jobs will be created, although
it is presumed that many of these would be part-time or seasonal positions. The application states that
these jobs would pay between $8.00 and $12.00 per hout. While this is a project that illustrates the
economic impact of regional initiatives such as Spearhead Trails across the region, resulting in increases in
ptivate capital investment through creation of small businesses such as this one, it does not cutrently
qualify for grant consideration under TRRC’s programs due to constitutional issues of granting public
funds for private purposes without a performance-based jobs and investment commitment. TRRC could
potentially assist through its loan progtam, however conversations with the IDA staff leading up to the
application submission indicated that the business owner is not interested in loan funding. ‘This inhibits
our ability to assist this project and others like it. While Staff commends the entrepreneurial initiative of
the campground owners, any consideration of grant funds for this project should use the TROF formula
as a basis for calculating a grant amount (which would be substantially less than this requested amount),
and should be performance-based telated to new job creation and new taxable ptivate investment.
However Staff is of the strong opinion that granting funds to private businesses is a significant and costly
precedent, and visitor-based businesses such as this one should only be assisted with loan funds.

Staff recommends no award.

Lincoln Memotrial University
LMU-CVM Vetetinary Education Building (#3563)
$4,018,490 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: In 2014, the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization
Commission aided in the construction and establishment of the DeBusk Veterinary Teaching Center
(DVTC) in Ewing, VA (see Location Map and DVTC Campus Map), with the goal to provide an
innovative environment to prepare competent DVM students. Since, Lincoln Memorial University-College
of Veterinary Medicine (LMU-CVM) has graduated two classes of vetetinary students, with 30% taking
jobs in rural Appalachia and some have opened veterinary businesses in the tobacco footprint (see Map 1).
Additionally, the number of applicants has increased. The LMU-CVM stands poised, ready to grow, and
we need yout help to expand our facilities. The LMU-CVM requests funding to suppott a state-of-the-art
veterinary education building (see Flootplan) to be located in Ewing, VA, on LMU’s existing DVTC
campus. This will allow us to grow our class, inctease faculty, create mote programs and setve as an
economic driver for the region.

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



Staff Comments and Recommendation: The Commission has approved three grants totaling $4.1M
since 2013 to assist LMU in establishing the Veterinary College in Lee County ($3.5M of those funds came
from the SWED progtam). LMU reportts it has graduated two classes of veterinatians since opening in
2015. Of those graduates, more than 200 have located in Appalachian states, and a handful within the
TRRC region. Staff therefore notes this proposal to construct a new $8M 25,000 squate foot education
building on the Ewing campus is rightfully in the SWED program due to the economic impact that
increased enrollment and employment will have on the Lee County economy (as opposed to Education
funding which focuses on serving Tobacco Region residents). Effectively, LMU serves like an anchor
business in Lee County, performing a service that is "exported" to other state markets, and generating
income earned and consumption of various goods from groceties to housing. Annual enrollment is
expected to increase from 96 to 220, with related (though unquantified) increases in staffing, purchasing,
housing demand etc. The Commission is being asked to provide more than $4M (50% of total costs) for
design, construction, futnishings and equipment for the new building which is scheduled to open in Q2 of
2021. LMU states it is a licensed general contractor and would setve in that role for the project. Cash
match from LMU is proposed to complete the project. Per the Commission's enabling legislation, as
updated in 2015, the Commission may make "loans to local governments to finance or refinance the cost
of any project that has an identifiable revenue stream from which the loan proceeds may be repaid" (Code
of Virginia section 3.2-3116), and this project shares many similatities with one of the initial TRRC loans
that was made to Bluefield College to expand its science building to allow expansion of its nursing
programs. Staff notes that the proposal indicates LMU's overall net income for F'Y 2019 (tevenues minus
expenditures) exceeded $7M, which indicates the ability to setvice loan debt should the Commission
consider that avenue rather than the requested grant funds. However, the balance available for
TRRC/VRA loans is currently less than $340K (from the $5M set aside in 2015 for the initial loans), so
additional loan capital would have to come from either a corpus invasion ot a current Committee balance.
Staff also notes the request significantly exceeds the available balance for the SWED program ($2.7M) and
per the Program Guidelines, "Requests which exceed the Program’s available balance will not receive a
staff recommendation."

Pet policy and program guidelines, Staff has no recommendation for a request that exceeds the
available Committee balance.

Millwald Theatre, Inc.
Millwald Theatte Restoration & Economic Revitalization Project (#3560)

$200,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The purpose of this project is to return the historic
Millwald Theatre (c. 1928) to setvice as a multipurpose, entertainment, education and community
engagement venue in the heart of Downtown Wytheville, Vitginia. Tobacco Commission funding will be
utilized for Architecture and Engineering Fees, and for construction activities necessary for the restoration
of the Theatte, including, demolition and new construction, new HVAC, plumbing and electrical systemns,
projection, theatrical lighting, sound and seating systems. Millwald Theatre is a key anchor property that
when restored and in full operation as described in the 2016 Financial Feasibility Study, will attract more
than 46,000 additional visitors to Downtown Wytheville each year.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to conduct Architectural and Engineering
work as well as construction activities associated with restoring the historic Milwald Theatre in downtown
Wytheville. This $4.3M total project is currently the highest economic development ptiotity for the Town
and is listed as a key strategy in Wytheville’s 2013 Fconomic Restructuting Plan. Additional objectives
contributing to the overall revitalization of the downtown atea such as the development of a business
incentive program, business competition, development of a2 community wide wayfinding system,
renovation of the downtown streetscape, facade improvements, and relocation of the Wytheville Farmers
Market have all been accomplished. According to the Restructuring Plan, the Theatet will setve as an

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



anchor to link downtown assets including the Bolling-Wilson Hotel and other lodging and dining
opportunities. Having a multi-use entettainment venue in the downtown area will enhance the ability to
lengthen the stays of current visitors and is intended to provide the opportunity to attract new visitors
through the expanded activity options. Due to its strategic location at the intersections of Interstates 77
and 81, Wytheville alteady attracts 575,000 overnight visitors each year, offeting an abundance of tax
revenue-generating lodging and dining options. The Wohlfahrt House Dinner Theatet setves numerous
tour bus groups on a yeat round basis. Annual attendance at the Theatre is estimated as 42K by 2022, with
approximately half of those being non-local visitors. The application reflects the tremendous amount of
planning that has been underway for several yeats to bring the project to this point. A detailed feasibility
study was provided in the application with a 10 year operating pro forma to illustrate that the project can
be sustainable. In addition to the matketing and business plans, a detailed PER was also provided. The
project will create 14 jobs including a full time marketing manager. Average salaties will be approximately
$33I<. While this project requires a large financial commitment to see it to completion, a detailed and
aggressive plan is in place to raise the needed capital. The Town of Wytheville’s strong commitment to the
project is reflected in the $600K it has provided for property acquisition. The non-profit is expected to
close on building acquisition in late summer. Applications will be submitted to DEQ (Brownfields
Restoration and Fconomic Redevelopment Assistance Fund Site Remediation Progtam -$50K), ARC
($500,000 to be submitted in October 2019), DHCD (pending IRF application $600K), and the National
Park Service (Historic Revitalization Subgrant Program — pending $750K). Millwald Theatre Inc, has hited
a fundraising consultant and hopes to raise $720,000 in private donations. Historic Tax Credits ($879,280)
will also be utilized. If the majority ot all of these applications are successful this will be an extremely well
leveraged project, however there do not appeat to be any matching funds committed to assist with the
A&E design phase. This wotk will be fully funded by TRRC using the majortity of the requested grant. A
smaller portion ($40k) would be used during the construction phase, which seems to be an insignificant
and premature piece of overall construction financing. Presumably matching funds would be used duting
the construction phase however cate must be taken to ensure that adequate match is available for
concurrent use duting the grant period. Staff therefore suggests that the Town's $600K grant to the
nonprofit to acquite the property, which ws to be accomplished concurrent with submission and teview of
this proposal, be recognized as the Code-required matching funds to an awatd for the $160K A&KE costs.

Staff recommends a grant award of $160,000 for contractual architectural and engineeting costs.

Southwest Regional Recreation Authority
Creating a Sportmans Economy for Southwest Vitginia (#3564)
$250,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: Using over 113 acres of donated property and permanent
easements these funds will develop the Rifle/Pistol Complex for the creation of a new tourism centeted
economy atound shooting spotts. This request is for funds to design and construct one of the three
complexes. A shotgun complex from private foundation funding and an archery complex being developed
by VCEDA funding. Funds will supply restrooms, several ranges of various types for competition
shooting, safety training, a headquarters developed from pattially restored historic home on one site built
in the late 1800s and being donated to Spearhead as a training, management, and storage facility for all
three sites. The result will be unique visits ranging from $13,000 to $38,200 annually with 50% of the
visitors from outside not including 3,600 visits with 90 % nonlocals for competitions. Creating 32 jobs and
$3.1 million in economic impacts.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to support the creation of a multi-
location set of shooting complexes, each developed with different shooting sports in mind. These four
sites will offet an additional option for Spearhead Ttails visitors to extend their stay, will attract a new
market of non-ATV trail visitors and will offer a diversified revenue stream for Spearhead’s operational

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



sustainability. In a sutvey of 1,000 users of Spearhead Trails, 92% indicated they would utilize this facility.
Of users from outside the area, 87% said they would stay an extra day to utilize this facility. Since 2008 the
Commission has provided approximately $2.45M for start up personnel and operating suppott to establish
the Spearhead Trail System, which has become a signature tourism initiative in Southwest Virginia,
resulting in significant economic impact in pattner communities. A feasibility study prepared for the
project found that there is a strong likelihood that current Spearhead Trails usets would also visit the
proposed shooting complex. Additionally, the complex will be utilized by area law enforcement agencies
who require safe, secure, locations for training. This complex will be one of only a few in a 160 mile radius.
Offering multiple types of ranges, in different locations, also increases the ability of the facility to attract
state or national competitive events. The project is estimated to attract 13,000 visitors annually with half of
those being from outside the atea, tesulting in 32 associated jobs and $3.1M in economic impact.
Commission funds will be used for property improvements ($120k) to one of the four selected properties
to develop the infrastructure needed to develop a tifle and pistol range. Equipment will be purchased
($34,350) and a bathroom facility will be constructed ($40,000) The 113 acre site, known as “Snowball
Hollow” is ptivately owned, however the landowner has agreed to grant an easement for the site and
donate 2 actes, a house, and storage building valued at $118,000. This donation represents the majority of
the direct match for the TRRC request, but exceeds the Commission’s 25% limit on in-kind matching
funds. Additional match listed in the application includes $16,000 of volunteer labor and $92,000 from
SRRA for 2 years of operating expenses (salaties, equipment, supplies and materials, etc). A $150,000
VCEDA grant has been awatrded to develop the archery site at the formet Dickenson County landfill, for
which County has provided a land use agreement to SRRA. A shotgun spotts and sporting clay site will be
developed on 107 actes of land owned by the Columbus Phipps Foundation which has been approached
to provide an casement for the property. Applications totaling $125k will be submitted to the NRA to
develop this location. On the fourth site, owned by one of the project’s advisots, a specialized shotgun
range will be developed. The application indicates that SRRA is wotking with the landowner to putsue
cither a partnership or a buyout that will make development of this site possible. Applications will also be
submitted to ARC ($52,000) to fund start up personnel and to DMME’s AML program ($300k) to fund
additional development at Snowball Hollow. If awarded, these funds would likely not be available until fall
of 2020 and do not appear to be spent concuttently with the TRRC funding. This ambitious plan to obtain
funding for four separate projects could result in as much as $905,000 of total grant funding for the first
phases of development. A mastet plan, survey, design, and permitting will be needed. Ideally construction
will begin in Spring 2020 and the complex will open in Fall of 2020 or Spring of 2021. In order to not
exceed the in-kind matching fund limit, in lieu of using multi-year operating funds as match after TRRC
funds have been spent, and in light of other grant sources still being pursued, Staff suggests 50% funding
for the rifle/pistol range.

Staff recommends a grant award of $125,000 to support half of the cost to develop the Snowball
Hollow rifle and pistol range.

Town of Lebanon
Restoration/Rehabilitation of the Histotic Russell Theater (#3559)

$200,000 Requested

Executive Summaty Provided by Applicant: Since September 2015, the Town has put a major focus
on the revitalization of the downtown atea. As with other small towns in SWVA, the downtown
commertce has been impacted by the development of new retail space outside the downtown footprint
resulting in significant building underutilization, deterioration and blight. The Historic Russell Theater is
located in the heart of downtown Lebanon and has been the centerpiece of the tevitalization vision from
Day 1. The purchase, renovation and incorporation of the theater into the revitalization project would
address many oppottunities such as temoving conditions of blight (improve the physical environment),
setve as a draw for visitors and toutist as well was local residents (promote tourism) and establish a

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



multiple-use “cornerstone” hub /venue for the community in the core of downtown
(community/economic development). The Town also realizes the potential benefits for Low-to-Moderate
individuals from services provided by the end use of the facility.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: The Town of Lebanon is requesting funds to support the
renovation of the vacant historic Russell Theater as patt of an ongoing downtown revitalization project,
which also includes streetscape upgrades, fagade improvements for 21 businesses, eight new apartments,
and the establishment of a $50,000 revolving loan fund to be used to attract new businesses to the area.
Matching funds are committed from the Town of Lebanon ($200,000), CDBG ($50,000), Cumberland
Plateau PDC’s newly established C-Prop Fund ($200,000), and VCEDA ($150,000). An application will be
submitted to ARC in January 2020 and to the Industtial Revitalization Fund in March 2020. A recently
completed feasibility and preliminary atchitectural/engineering report was provided along with cost
estimates. According to the application the total project cost is approximately $1M including a $150k
acquisition cost. The PAR’s Statement of Probable Cost provided in August indicates that renovations will
total $818,200. Once reopened the Theater hopes to align with other regional initiatives such as The
Crooked Road and Round the Mountain. The facility will provide an indoor space for concerts and
entertainment events in the Town which currently can only be held outdoors in the Town’s patk. The
application did not contain a formal operating or marketing plan for the project but does indicate that the
Town will provide suppott for the Theater in its annual budget. This support will include necessaty
staffing and ongoing maintenance. Additionally, the Town has hired an events coordinator who will be
responsible for planning programs at the Theater and other locations in I.ebanon. The project is estimated
to create five jobs with an average salary of $27,852 and attract 4,000 new visitots to the Town annually.
While restoration of the theater will provide a year-round performance venue that could enable Lebanon
to benefit from regional toutism initiatives such as Crooked Road and Speathead Trails, without a
marketing plan and a targeted list of events it is difficult to determine to what extent this visitation will be
from local residents versus out of town guests. Staff therefore suggests this project be tabled to allow the
Applicant to secute the remaining funding sources and provide mote detailed plans for event
programming and marketing, operating policies/ procedures/budget, and estimates of non-local visitation
that could be based on similar TRRC-supported regional venues such as Pennington Gap's Lee Theater,
Coebutn's Lays Hardware, Marion's Lincoln Theater, The Rex in Galax and others.

Staff recommends this request be tabled pending additional information on event programming
and marketing, operating policies/procedutes/budget, and data estimates on out-of-town
visitation,

Town of St. Paul
Lyric Project, Phase II (#3569)
$349,600 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Lyric Project is an integral part of the region’s asset-
based community/economic development strategy. By having the ability to host meetings/breakout
sessions for 200+ attendees in eight different rooms and use the stage/auditorium seating, the Lyric will be
a unique venue that will attract a variety of visitors. Once complete, St. Paul and the region will have a
destination feature normally only found in metro areas- the ability to have a complete multi-day visit that
includes cultural and outdoor recteation experiences without having to get in ones’ vehicle. The $349,600
tequested from the Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission funds for the Lyric Project Phase IT
project will be used for the construction/installation of the Lyric Theater’s new meeting rooms. The Lytric
Theatet will further the region’s goal of supporting local businesses, attracting a vatiety of visitors, and
advances the TRRC’s Strategic and Funding Priotity V- Community Assets and Opportunities.

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to begin Phase 2 of a 3 phase, §3.4M
total renovation to the histotic Lyric Theater in downtown St. Paul. This project is part of the ongoing
revitalization of the Town which has benefited greatly from the development of the TRRC-funded
Speathead Trails and the Western Front Hotel, along with other outdoor recteation oppottunities and
visitor-based businesses. In addition to serving as an entertainment venue, the Theater will also contain
much needed meeting space to accommodate large groups and conferences which cannot cutrently be
accommodated elsewhere in Town. The Western Front Hotel, while providing an attractive lodging option
for these groups, does not have the types of amenities ot space to host these events. A portion of this
request ($184,000) will be used to purchase the partitions and walls needed to develop breakout rooms in
the meeting facilities. The remainder of the request ($205,600) will be used for Phase 2 renovation for
mechanical, electrical and plumbing work. Phase 1, which focused on fagade and structural repair and
stabilization, is largely complete. The phase cost approximately $480,000 and was funded through grants
from ARC ($300K) and VCEDA ($40,000) as well as Town contributions ($90,000+), and VA Main Street
funding. To meet the estimated $1.2M Phase 2 cost, TRRC funds will be combined with an additional
approved ARC grant ($200K) and additional Town funding ($100I). A $600K IRF application is pending
with DHCD and represents a latge pottion of the funding needed to complete this phase. The Town also
plans to seek funding from various foundations (Dominion, Slemp, etc), USDA, local contributions, etc. to
complete the project. Historic tax credits will also be used during Phase 3, which will complete interior
furnishings, equipment and fixtures. Outcomes are estimated at 3,000 visitors pet year tesulting in $56,000
in revenue from ticket sales. The project will create five jobs with average salaties of $27,500. The
requested amount, though latger than the Wytheville and Lebanon theater requests, is just over 10% of the
overall project budget and is well-leveraged by substantial funding from other state and federal agencies.
While outcomes are more modest than the Wytheville theater project, they seem apptopriately sized to
visitor amenities in St. Paul and consistent with those in the Lebanon theater project. Staff supports the
focus of TRRC funds on the build-out of meeting space that is sotely lacking in St. Paul, and will enable
growth of corporate and other business and group-telated visitation.

Staff recommends a grant award of $349,600 contingent on commitment of funds tequired to
complete Phase 2 construction.

Tazewell County Industrial Development Authotity
Cultural Arts of Southwest Vitginia Corporation (#3557)
$225,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: This venue will lease and utilize approximately 2800 sq.ft.
of space from Tazewell Cinema & Entertainment located in Tazewell County. This project will add
approximately 1700 squate ft. to an existing building in creating a Performing Atts venue. The additional
square footage will consist of a stage, greenroom, 2 dressing rooms including showers and restrooms,
kitchenette, backstage prop atea, and a loading dock. The addition will include a mezzanine in order to
increase seating capacity. The Town of Tazewell has never had a venue for staged performing arts
productions. A partnetship with the Barter Theater has already been established. Theit commitment will
be a valuable contribution to the entertainment that can be provided at the facility. Also, the Citizens for
the Arts is looking forward to the opening to celebrate their 40th anniversary at the location.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This proposal would add space for a stage, mezzanine,
dressing roomns, testrooms, loading dock etc. to one of three theaters within the Tazewell Cinema complex
in North Tazewell that was deeded by the Town of Tazewell to Tazewell Cinema & Entertainment LLC in
2017. The Cinema building is located at the rear of the Cumberland Plaza shopping center on Hast
Riverside Drive in a highway-otiented commercial shopping district. Two additions totaling 2,500 squate
feet will be added to the exterior walls of theater 3, which currently is 2,800 square feet, to enable live
performances. The cost of additions is estimated by a local contractor at $275K, of which the $225K

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



request for construction is being sought from the Commission. Matching funds from an approved bank
loan would fund the balance of construction (approx. $50K) as well as nearly $190K of interior furnishings
and equipment including flooring, chairs, sound, lighting, acoustics, stage curtains and backstage
furnishings. The for-profit LLC has provided an executed lease that makes theater 3 and the additions
available for a fifty year term at $1 per year exclusively to a newly-formed non-profit, Cultural Arts of
Southwest Virginia. The proposal describes a plan to use the space for theatrical plays, dance
petformances, music concerts and other events, and includes a letter from Barter Theatre's Atrtistic
Ditectot exptessing interest in bringing touring productions to the Tazewell space. A business plan with
operating pro forma was provided for the nonprofit, showing a cash surplus of revenues ($1.7M) over
operating costs ($1.5M) of more than $260K annually by the third year of operation. Staff notes that the
project leader is both a principal ("Managing Member") of the LLC and a Director on the nonprofit's six
member board. As such, she setves as the landlord and property owner for the space being leased to the
nonprofit on which she serves. Staff suggests an ex officio non-voting role on the nonprofit board is a
mote appropriate separation of those potentially conflicting roles. Staff is moreso concerned with the issue
of providing public grant funds to a for-profit property ownet, and that a number of termination clauses in
the lease, while standard to commetcial leases, could result in the space being returned to use by the LLC
for profit-making purposes. To address that issue in the case of grant funds being approved for this
project, the propetty owner has agreed to the Commission recording a lien on the space improved with
TRRC funds, though that would likely be in a second position behind the local bank that is lending funds
for the interior improvements. As this is not a case in which TRRC funds are granted directly to a
nonprofit which has ownetship title to a Commission-funded structure, Staff feels a mote appropriate
solution in this case is to offer a long-term loan (up to 20 yeats at current rates of approx. 2.5% per
annum) through the County IDA to the LLC for construction of these long-lived improvements. In the
latter scenario, the Commission would have a collateralized lien that would be released upon full
repayment of the loan, and any termination of the nonprofit's lease would not trigger issues of public
funds granted for private for-profit purposes. The pro forma in the business plan appears to justify this
approach from a net operating tevenues standpoint, as this approach would result in annual debt service of
less than $15,000, which is well within the projected net operating margins.

Staff recommends this project be referred to Vitginia Resources Authotity for consideration of a
loan from the TRRC Revolving Loan Fund.

University of Virginia
UVa-Wise Southwest FOURSight (#3571)
$750,000 Requested — Increased to $1,005,127.89

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: UVa-Wise proposes to build a Southwest Vitginia-based
teleworking workforce in cybersecurity and outfit it with technology and market access to become the first
opetation in the country to apply a new decentralized labor model to solve the national crisis in
cybersecurity talent shortages. This model has the potential to reduce the risk of cybersecurity attacks, such
as ransomware, that today are unchecked in many governments and smaller entetptises across the countty.
The College and its partner, FOUR18 Intelligence Cotp., an emerging Vitginia cybetsecurity company, will
replicate FOUR18’s pathfinder progtam already underway at Fastern Kentucky University to create a
sustainable cyber worlkforce in Southwest Virginia, supplying it also with cutting edge collaborative cyber
analysis technology to enable it to be first to market with this novel model and to grow it through national
marketing partners including Amazon Web Setvices and federal agencies that have already performed
pilots and requested new proposals.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: This request, otiginally submitted for $7501<, was increased by
UVA-W to $1,005,127.89 in subsequent budget documents received by Staff in mid-August. Funds are
requested for an 18-24 month project period that would support cybersecutity training and internship

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



expetiences for one cohort of "non-technology" UVA-W students recruited from psychology, business
and criminal justice majots. The larger objective is to establish a UVA-Wise program at Oxbow Centet in
St. Paul that would annually train 20-25 students for remote teleworking positions with federal contractots,
communities and private businesses to hunt for and defend against cyber secutity attacks. The proposal
cites GO Virginia and Opportunity Zone funding as tools to attract employers to establish operations in
SWVA that would employ program graduates. TRRC funds would supplement a $458K federal grant
request that has been submitted to a joint program of the Department of Labor and Appalachian Regional
Commission that does not have a matching fund requirement. Separate matching fund requests are
intended to an unnamed "federal civilian agency” ($495K) and CIT ($50K). The private sector project
partner (FOUR18 Intelligence Cotp.) is a cybetsecutity company based in Notthetn Virginia which was
identified based on its work in a current ARC-funded parallel effort in Eastern Kentucky. Neatly 80% of
TRRC funds ($786K) would be used to contract with FOUR18 for the development and use of their
proprietary online cubersecutity training platform and staff services, and neatly half of that amount
($437K) is requested to "adapt FOUR18's platform and technologies to pilot cyber hunting services by the
UVA-W cohort on a major federal agency's enterprise data and US cities." FOUR18 would also receive
TRRC funds to pay staff to manage apprenticeship services and offer cyber skills simulations. FOUR18
proposes to provide $917I< of match from the above-referenced federal grant programs, none of which
have approved yet. Approx. $219K of the TRRC request would benefit UVA-W for personnel ($63K),
equipment ($48K), supplies/materials ($15I<) and transfer payments (stipends) to students ($94I<). The
College would provide $111K of matching funds, primarily through federal grants to fund a portion of the
transfer payments to patticipating students. The intended outcomes in the project period are to identify 25
participants in the pilot cohott and provide hybrid online/face-to-face training and work-based
internships. Program completers will sit for the nationally-recognized CompTIA Secutity+ certification
and be awarded a UVA-W 6-hout certificate. It is anticipated that the 12 highest performing students will
then begin thtee-month apprenticeships with employets to be identified during the project, while the othet
13 will begin entry-level IT jobs averaging $40IC annually. The applicants state that sustainability will
accomplished through a variety of funding sources, including reduced-cost licenses for UVA-W to use the
FOUR18 platform, so that future annual cohotts will be added. Staff notes a variety of factors and
concerns regarding this request, including the high percentage of available SWED funds that are being
requested ($1M of the $2.7M available, which would preclude funding other projects recommended at this
time), dependence on as-yet unapproved matching funds, the emergence of a state-approved Rural IT
Apprenticeship Grant program for which guidelines are cutrtently being developed by the Southwest VA
Higher Education Center, the high cost to train and certify 25 students (by comparison, Southern VA
Higher Education Centet was recently granted $506K in Education to add four CompTIA certifications at
its I'T Academy with additional annual enrollment of 70+), and the large request to use public funds to
further develop FOUR18's proprietary training platforms. Staff is of the opinion this project should be
repositioned to focus TRRC funds moreso on the public partnet(s), leverage the new Rural IT
Apptenticeship grants when those become available, and be reconsideted when other matching soutces are

secured.

Staff recommends this tequest be tabled.

Virginia's Heritage Music Trail: The Crooked Road
The Crooked Road On Tour (#3568)
$100,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: The Crooked Road On Tour (CROT) is one of The
Ctrooked Road's (I'CR) most successful programs and provides a rotating roster of exemplary heritage
music attists from the region that ate available to perform throughout Virginia and in other states. These
performances have successfully motivated attendees to visit Southwest Virginia, which is one of TCR's
primary organizational goals and a core mission objective. he Crooked Road is seeking support to expand

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



the CROT program by taking CROT performances to 50 communities outside the region and in other
states over a 12-24 month period. Expanding the program is intended to increase visitation to Southwest
Vitginia, to strengthen TCR's brand, and to promote the tich culture and natural assets of the region as a
desirable place to visit and live.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to continue the Crooked Road on Tour
program, which has been ongoing since 2014. This program targets performances in metro areas within
400 miles of the Crooked Road region and seeks to entice attendees to visit the area. Over the past 5 years,
Crooked Road artists have performed in Delaware, Maryland, New York, Pennsylvania and throughout
Vitginia. The application provided an impressive list of these performances as well as a limited number of
scheduled upcoming events. The Crooked Road, which has been supported with neatly $2M in TRRC
funding over the past 15 years, has an established system for managing the "Tour program. While this track
record of coordinating with venues, promoters, and artists is commendable, it confirms that this is a well-
established program that does not meet the Commission’s priority of suppotting new activities. This is
reflected in the application’s budget where nearly half of the request ($49,450) would support long
standing staff positions, which have been supported through previous grants. Funding is requested to
support 12% of the Executive Director’s salaty ($6,306), Program Manager ($38,797), and the
Administrative Assistant ($4,347). The remainder of the request will be used to develop a new portable
exhibit as well as other matketing materials. These items total $23,000 including costs associated with
shipping the portable exhibit to petformances. The remainder of the request ($27,500) will directly
suppott the tour performances through artist fees and travel, and technical support for the tour emcee and
sound technician, The application estimates an increase in visitation of 1,500 however it seems difficult to
attribute that increase as the direct result of the ongoing tours versus other marketing efforts. The majority
of matching funds are uncommitted with requests to be submitted to the Vitginia Tourism Corporation
($25,000), National Council for the Traditional Arts ($15,000) and private sponsorships ($322,150). The
Crooked Road will contribute $15,350 of their own funds to suppott this request. Based on the long-
standing nature of this program and these positions, as well as the tenuous premise that actual visitation
can be attributed to the performances and reliably measured, the proposal received a low score.

Staff recommends no award.

Wythe County
APEX Ancillaty Building (#3562)
$100,000 Requested

Executive Summary Provided by Applicant: This project will fund a supporting ancillary building to
facilitate additional outside and multipurpose events that will incorporate the planned multipurpose
building. This will include outside bathtooms and showets, livestock wash racks for individuals to clean up
their show horses and livestock. It will also include an equipment maintenance shed. This will all be
located at the Appalachian Regional Exposition Center site in Wytheville, Va. The main goal of this
supporting ancillaty building is to help drive the economic impact of the Appalachian Regional Exposition
Center. The goal of building the supporting structure is to increase the capacity of the APEX Centet
facility and surrounding grounds. Building this supporting structute allows us to have two large scale
events at the same time. If we can ticket both groups at concurrent separate events, we will double the
tevenue stream in income through the admissions tax.

Staff Comments and Recommendation: Funding is requested to support an addition to the
multipurpose building at the Appalachian Agriculture Expo Center in Wytheville. Construction of this
ancillary building was supported with at $200K Agribusiness grant in Januaty 2019. Since the time of that
award, the need to have additional restroom facilities to serve the Apex Center complex has been
demonstrated duting the first year of events held at the site. The addition will also contain shower facilities
which is an amenity not cutrently available at the venue. In addition to the $200K award made in January,

EY?20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



Commission funds have provided $1M to suppott development of the total $10M development cost of the
Appalachian Agricultural Expo Center facility. These funds wete used for site development and for
construction of the Apex Center. Since opening in January, the APEX Center has hosted a variety of
events including two rodeos, a monstet truck rally, kart racing, mixed martial arts, high school graduation,
circus, motoctoss events, and several concerts. Additional restroom facilities will allow the facility to
accommodate crowds of up to 10,000. The current facilities, located in the main Apex building, can
accommodate up to 6,000 visitors (it is not known how often crowds exceeding 6,000 are likely). The
addition of shower facilities will allow the venue to serve events (patticulatly sporting) that might require
that amenity ot to those staying overnight for weekend events. Typical contractual obligations for
entettainers ot entertainment companies often requite on-site shower accommodations. The addition will
also contain wash racks which are required for livestock patticipating in events such as hotse shows,
livestock shows, livestock sales, etc. The total cost for the addition is estimated to be approximately $205k
with half that amount ($100k) to be provided by Wythe County. Staff suggests this request is appropriately
in the SWED funding competition as the requested facilities will serve non-agricultural event visitors (in
addition to serving agricultural livestock events). While it is difficult to quantify the economic impact
associated with this particular addition to the facility, the need has been demonstrated through actual event
bookings, and there is significant evidence that the Apex Center complex as a whole has the potential to
generate significant event-driven revenue both for the facility and suttounding hotels, restaurants, etc. that
benefit from the increased visitation.

Staff recommends a grant award of $100,000.

FY20 SWED — Summaries & Staff Recommendations — October 2019



"0z0z Buudg
Ag pelajdwos aq o) pajeLunss si siyL
1eyoed jeylew ssew ay} jo uoionpoid 1oj

pasn aq 0} ulewsal ||IM 4§ Aerewixoiddy 108(0ud uswdoeraq LBSY mv_mwsa%_ﬂ
"goueleq Jua1ind ay} jo Ajuolew - ; sialep : m“ o
a1 85N (M ‘Josloid U} JO LOKRASILILIPE pusixs | 810z/L2/E | ¥8CL8'VLS 000'sz$ 6102/e2/60 | Sl0g/ee/60 MBN :UIEIUNO %EM%MM_N 890¢
Jano uaye)] sey yoiym eiubap (1xaN) ay1 punoy, w.c.u, punoy
1S8MUINOS JO spual4 Ag papiwgns aq o}
41sonbal s1y] -Buiuooypoy 2q [m }sanbal
wswAed e jey] seiels alepdn jussey
6102 JoqWan0ON Ul palanlep wnjuswopy| Auowny
aq 0] pajoadxe Ing palspioydeq S| 3oni| dnpe)s |njsseoong :o;w&omm
‘welboid sjiei] [euonessdsy ay) ybnouyy| pusixa | 6102Z/0€/y | Zr'9L8'6LS | 000°0S¥$ 610¢/€2/60 | SlL02/Ee/60 Bujurejurely se3 _mco_mmm Go0E
yonJ} dwnp e aseysind o} papssu yojew auyj Jo punoibield me_s_._w:om
%0z o} payedoj|e s| juelb Jo aoueleq ainuanpy
uoneubissp spue|iom pediyjguiolaas Auoyiny
o : 3 10 ndioo4 [euoibay :
1 anp palinbas Bupyuuad [euonippe 10} —_— O, TN oy Buipueds uonealnay 062
pue (owssiy) Auadoid Ay & Jeno ynsme| pusy 8LOT/LLIS | 2F¥0C €6 000'SEY! 6102/0€/60 | +102/52/60 .r_ vc:.o‘_mzm_w [euoiBey
e 0] anp pakejap usasq sey joafoid sy i 1SeMmyinos
i s e o | 1osloid ssejeum uoiyeoD
je diysiapes| ui sabueud Ag pakejep| pusixa | 910¢/9¢/L [2L6€L'L8LS| 000°00S'LS 020Z/L0/L0 | ¥#10¢/L0/10 By B L¥8¢
; pleyleo) eiuibup| playeod euibip
3Jom [eUOIIpPE 1o} 82uBleq pajsanbal
“MIom SiU} 1o} spuswalinbal pEOY PaYo0Iy
juswainoold Buipliebal yeis OudL \ . puelg peoy payool) ]
[V E=) i =] Jjlea] aisn
LM JOBJLO0D Ul USS] SBY SPUBLIY "YAMS JO pusyxe |GlL0Z/LZ/2)| v9'5Zs'6rs | 000°802$ 6102/0€/60 | €102/9¢/60 5y Buipuedxg mmmw__%m__.._ mw_:m_m.___ﬁ BELZ
Spusl{ Ag palalsIuILIpe 89 MOU [[IM JUBlD : DR
‘UOIJONJISUOD peol
Joy papeau Buipuny sy} Buunoas 0} Asy aq
[IIM 4DIYm UOIFE20| SIU} 1O} paljijuapl ussq jeuy swdojanaq
sey Joedsoid v "UolONIsU02 Joj Bulpuny| v:mwxm SL0Z/SLIL | 0EP0LEPS 000°09% 610¢/0€/60 | €L0¢/9C/60 peoy sseddy| Q| Aunod 99| 6Z.2
OdY LOQA Pue (4yQ3) specy ssassy $yeQ leuonnysuo)
uswdojana( o1wouodg ansind 0} Y| SuUl
Mo|je 0} paubisapal usaq sey Josfoid ay
ajeg
sajoN uonay| mesq iseq aoueeg punouly pug joefoid uo oy 3oefoid uoneziuebiQ | # jueis
’ pasouddy panoiddy

juaung




"020g ie| Ul 9)9|dwod pue 6102 lled

ale| Ul uibaq 0} pajedionue sI UOHONIISUOD AOCHRAD spsinEdne
Ken pojscion.e o Bie pusixe | 6L0Z/8/L |0¥'896'LOLS| 000'¥8L$ | 6l0Z/ET/60 | SLOZ/EZ/BO0 uobeiq sy} Jo jopreod| 8L0€
eauapun s1ing mainal ubisap 10AA yoeg s,Aunoy PAWS AunoD WAWS
yum pareroosse sAejap paosusiiadxa joslold '
Buipuny uoisusixa peol Jo e
: : Jsayua) eleq Aewu uoyin
Z/1 Jeylo Buunosas uo 194 ssaiboid ou pue i owtw m@m i a._,m__ EmE@m_% \NmM
joadsoid umouy ON “jied 8yl Ul alaymesis| osoj2 suou  (Q0'00S‘eL$| 00G'9FLS 810g/ce/60 | SL0Z/Ee/60 55900y SIWOU09T G.0¢
uads spuny Buiyosyew Buisn ‘uoipuod sueq ABojouyos | acz.oo 11098
UOI}ONIISUOD peOl %06 Wol} jaljal Bunyaas Aunos 11005
‘ssoiboid maln o) Ainp z aseyq
ul yisia ays e pajejdwod Jels OYY 1 "0202 ‘anjeay | Jopeg Jo| "ou| ‘uoepuno
aje] Aq pejeidwioo oq o} pajoadxa sipue| puslxe | sUOU  |00ZES'0SCS| 2ES'0SZS | 6LOZ/EZ/B0 | SLOZ/EZBO | fseden uoponpoig e syy| FL08
BuloBuo si jiom uonenousy “laqusides ’ aul mc._ucmax
ul papiwgns sem Hodal [enuuy ’ 3
WAMS 30 spudli{ Aq palajsiuilpe 8q
Mou |im JuelB siy] “pajielsul pue palapio
aq |m subis ay) ‘peubis ale sjusweaibe
ay} aouQ ‘suswsaaibe uonedped saousIpny peoy payool)
uBls 0} peXSE 3 [IM PUE PAYNUSP! USG| pusyxe | /10Z/LL/6 | 08°LOVLLS | €80°'26€$ | 610Z/€T/60 | SLOZ/EZ/60 maN Bulyoesy| eyl :iell dISnN| 0L0€

aney sal|eoo] a|qibljg "peoy paqoold
ay] Joy poddns [enuue apinoid 18y}
sal|eoo| aziubooal 0} abeubis Joj pasn
2q 0} papuajul s| juelb siy} jo souejeq

- PEOY PaX001D BYL

abejiay selubip




AGENDA

TROF COMMITTEE

Wednesday, October 9, 2019

4:30 P.M.

Call-in - 646-558-8656 / Access code: 601-082-667

General Francis Marion Hotel
107 East Main Street

Marion, VA

Welcome and Call to Order
Call of the Roll

Approval of the 6/5/19 Minutes
Project Red Discussion

TROF #3300, Town of Tazewell /
Point Broadband

Other Business
Extension Requests

Public Comments

Adjournment

The Honorable Terry Kilgore, Chair
Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director
(published on website)

Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director

Evan Feinman, Executive Director

Andy Sorrell, Deputy Director



TROF Committee Staff Summaries

Request to release the Town of Tazewell from TROF Obligation

1. Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund # 3300
Town of Tazewell Economic Development Authority

Sunset Digital Communications, Inc. (now Point Broadband)

Staff Summary & Comments: This TROF project consists of a grant and a loan both
awarded to the Town of Tazewell EDA (the Town) and Sunset Digital Communications, Inc.
(now Point Broadband, the Company) on May 31, 2017. The grant was in the amount of
$680,000 and as was the loan for a total award of $1,360,000 both awards disbursed prior to
performance. The executed performance agreement requires the Company to employ 50
persons with an aggregate payroll of $562,500. The taxable asset obligation during the
performance period is $47,000,000. The Town of Tazewell supported this project, because
it was expected that Sunset would open a local office in the Town. The Town provided
security (via a bond for both the grant and loan amounts) to secure the Company’s
performance obligations.

Since the project was awarded, Sunset Digital Communications purchased the BVU Optinet
network in August 2018 and Sunset became Point Broadband in 2019. Sunset’s acquisition of
the optinet network made the need for an office in the Town less of priority and it is not
planned to be opened. Point Broadband’s acquisition of the Optinet network meant that
optinet’s previously public capital assets (and untaxed) became private and therefore taxable.
The Company has indicated that the capital assets that are now taxable are $50,000,000
which more than meets the taxable asset obligation for the TROF project. Staff has been
working with the Company to confirm performance, but due to the regional nature of this
project, it has taken longer than anticipated to gather the data. Staff has high confidence that
the capital investment obligation of this project has been met and the employment obligation
has also either been met or is very close to being met.

The Town desires to utilize the funding currently encumbered by the bonds for this project
for another opportunity. Since staff is confident that Company will be able to meet the
performance obligations, staff is comfortable in recommending the Town be released from
their financial obligation securing this project. Note that the Company remains responsible
for confirming that the performance obligation have been meet and meeting any repayment
obligation if full performance is not achieved.

Staff recommends the Town of Tazewell be fully released from the repayment obligations
associated with TROF #3300 and as more fully described in Exhibits B of both the Grant
and Loan Performance Agreements totaling $1,360,000 ($680,000 for the grant and same

for the loan).




Extension Requests:

1. Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund # 2850
City of Bristol, VA
CBH Bristol, LLC (Sessions Hotel)

Request for a 6+Year Extension through March 31, 2020

Staff Summary & Comments: This TROF grant was awarded to the City of Bristol (the
City) and CBH Bristol, LLC (the Company) on February 25, 2014 in the amount of $265,000
with funding fully disbursed prior to performance. The ori ginal 36-month performance
period ended December 31, 2016 and was administratively extended through 12/31/2017.
The executed performance agreement required the company to employ 75 persons with an
aggregate payroll of $434,408. The taxable asset obligation during the performance period
was $19,823,298. As of the end of September 2019, the Company has indicated that they
have met 74% of their capital investment with an investment of $14,619,027 and are on their
way to meeting the employment obligation.

As shown on the attached letter of support from the City, the hotel received its building
permit in August 2018 and as of September 2019 construction is 70% complete.

The Company has requested an extension through March 31, 2020 which would be a
performance period of more than 6 years. While staff understands the Company’s desire to
extend the performance period until the employment obligation is fully met, staff cannot
recommend an extension past 12/31/2019 which would be a full 6 year performance period.
A letter of support from the City is attached for reference.

Staff recommends approval of a final extension through December 31, 2019.

2. Tobacco Region Opportunity Fund # 3101
Tazewell County Industrial Development Authority
Blue Wolf Sales & Service, Inc.

Request for a 5™ Year Extension through September 30, 2020

Staff Summary & Comments: This TROF grant was awarded to the Tazewell County IDA
(the County) and Blue Wolf Sales and Service, Inc. (the Company) on October 15, 2015 in
the amount of $50,000. The original 36-month performance period ended September 30,
2018 with funding fully disbursed prior to performance. The executed performance
agreement required the company to employ 15 persons with an aggregate payroll of
$102,881.25. The taxable asset obligation during the performance period was $1,559,000.



As of September 2019, the Commissioner of Revenue shows that a significant amount of
capital investment has been made by the company with more investment expected in the
coming year.

The County met with the Company at the end of August to review the performance
obligations of this and an associated COF grant the Company received. The County has
confirmed that the Company is in growth mode and in addition to hiring more people, they
have also worked with GenEdge and other financial experts complete a financial and
business analysis that demonstrates the company commitment to meeting the performance
obligations of the TROF grant. As both the Company and the County feel that an extension
would permit them to meet their performance obligation for jobs and capital investment, staff
supports the extension request. A letter of support from the County is attached for reference.

Staff recommends approval of a 5" year extension through September 30, 2020.




285°

CITY OF BRISTOL, VIRGINIA
Department of Economic Development
300 Lee Street
Bristol, Virginia 24201
(276) 645-7352

September 11, 2019

Mr. Andrew V. Sorrell, Deputy Director

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
701 E. Franklin Street, Suite 501

Richmond, VA 23219

RE: The Sessions Hotel — TROF #2850

Dear Mr. Sorrell,

This letter provides the following information with regard to the Sessions Hotel TROF
#2850:

1. atimeline of the numerous unexpected delays, mostly related to funding the
project

2. an “accounting” of current status of the project

3, our projected dates for complete satisfaction of the grant terms

Timeline — Due to the complicated funding structure of this project, most delays have
been related to getting financing commitments and subsequent closings.

e 02/25/14 — Date of the Tobacco Commission Performance Agreement.
04/30/15 — Received Senior Loan Commitment from Community Trust Bank
(“CTB”). This delay of over a year was due to 1) abandoning pursuit of New
Market Tax Credits (“NMTC’s™), and 2) working through numerous banks
that were either too small or not in the hospitality business until finally finding
the right banking partner. A condition of CTB’s commitment is the use of a
USDA Business and Industry Loan guarantee, which add another layer of
approvals and a significant amount of documentation.

e 06/30/15 — Received USDA pre-approval and invitation to submit application,
began process of generating application documents, which required over 500
pages of documentation.



09/24/15 — Met onsite with USDA and CTB to review project and address
flood zone concerns.

10/08/15 — Met in Richmond with VTC, VRA, and City of Bristol to work out
details of meshing Tourism Development Financing Program (“TDFP”) and
City of Bristol No Net Loss agreement.

10/23/15 — Received first appraisal of project, a requirement of lender,
however, appraisal was performed incorrectly and had to be reordered by
lender.

11/06/15 — Submission to USDA.

11/20/15 — Received term sheet from another investor for HTC’s that is better
than original offeror, so comparing terms. '

11/23/15 — Received “correct” appraisal.

12/03/15 — Received comments from USDA requesting additional financial
information from CPA, which is almost complete and will be submitted to
USDA no later than next week. Once we receive approval from USDA, we
expect 30 days to get to closing, as advised by CTB.

06/01/16 — Received USDA Conditional Commitment.

05/03/17 — USDA Conditional Commitment extended to June 1, 2018 due to
delays in SBA backed TDFP Gap Financing loan.

05/22/17 — Received SBA 504 Authorization for Debenture Guarantee.
08/25/17 — Executed contract with Architect.

08/31/17 — USDA/CTB Loan Closed.

09/12/17 — CTB notifies Sessions Properties that commercial loan officer who
closed the loan is no longer with CTB. Also, CTB now requiring a bridge
loan for the SBA 504, a new requirement and unforeseen requirement that
surfaced after the loan officer change.

04/23/18 — CTB Bridge Loan for SBA 504 note closed.

06/19/18 — 100% Construction Documents received from Architect.
08/15/18 — Land Disturbance Permit received from the City of Bristol.
08/20/18 — Building Permit received from the City of Bristol.

09/11/19 — Construction is over 70% complete.

Current Status of Project

Total capital investment to date: $14,619,027 (73.75% of required, will be
over 75% by the end of September 2019)
Approximate construction payroll, including subcontractors, to date by
quarter:
o 2018-Q1 - $86,870
2018-Q2 - $171,732
2018-Q3 - $257,814
2018-Q4 - $803,419
2019-Q1 - $713,068
2019-Q2 - $908,922
2019-Q3 - $359,361 (to-date, will be greater than 2019-Q2 at end of
quarter)

O C OO0 O O



Projected Dates for Satisfaction of Grant Terms

o Project will exceed total investment amount of $19,823,298 by December 31,
2019.

e Project will employ at least 75 persons with a quarterly aggregate payroll of at
least $434,408 by March 31, 2020.

Sessions Properties, LLC appreciates the continued support of the Virginia Tobacco
Region Revitalization Commission as they have successfully navigated the numerous
lengthy delays and are close to bringing this project to a conclusion and adding a very
valuable asset to the City of Bristol, Virginia. This grant was truly the “seed” that
allowed Sessions to embark on this lengthy endeavor.

The City supports a 6™ year extension of the Performance Agreement for this project. I
am very confident that this project will meet its performance obligations within this

period of time.
Thank you for your kind consideration.

Sincerely,

o )&% iy s
Gary C. Wilcox
Economic Development Director



Tazewell County Industrial Development Authority
TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA

108 East Main Street * Tazewell, Virginia 24651 ¢ Phone 276-988-1270 » Fax 276-988-2996

September 20, 2019

Andrew V., "Andy" Sorrell

Deputy Director

Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
701 E. Franklin St., Ste. 501

Richmond, VA 23219

Dear Mr. Sorrell:

On behalf of the Industrial Development Authority of Tazewell County, | am requesting an
extension from the Virginia Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission for a term of one year for
the TROF Grant received by Blue Wolf Sales and Service, Inc,

Our County Administrator, Eric Young, and I, met with Blue Wolf on August 30th to discuss their
responsibilities and criteria for receiving the COF Funds. After reviewing each of the reports, we
acknowledged that they have created jobs with an average wage of $34,342.49 compared to the
required average of $27,435. Blue Wolf has built relationships with customers such as Lowes,
Rural King, Walmart, Advance Auto and others. They are engaged in discussions with these
larger retail chains at the regional level and with some, are now discussing potential national
distribution. In preparation for this extraordinary growth, Blue Wolf has worked with SMT
engineering to design upgrades of their manufacturing capabilities to perform at higher volume
production requirements including automation and additional bottling capabilities. Over the
past year, Blue Wolf has worked with GenEdge and independent financial experts to complete a
detailed financial and business analysis. In the past few weeks, they have started interviewing
people to fill the positions that will be created by this growth and have already hired two
additional people bringing their total number of employees to 14.

These efforts are a significant demonstration of how Blue Wolf has worked to plan for their
growth, streamline their operation and broaden their marketing plan. Following our meeting,
we are highly confident in Blue Wolf's ability to meet the TROF requirements if given the
extension,

Blue Wolf has been a valued corporate partner for many years in Tazewell County and we
believe will continue to be an important economic resource for our region. Requesting a return
of the TROF funds at this time would place an undue hardship on the company and possibly, put
the company’s future at risk.



To help keep Blue Wolf on path, Tazewell County requests an extension on the TROF award of
$50,000.

We appreciate your support of this project.

Sincerely,

Pam Warden,
Economic Development Manager

cc: Kyle Hurt, IDA Chairman



6102 '} 4290100

000°EZL0LS 0$ 000°€LL'0LS 0S.'€8¢E°1¥8S 950' -4 sjoafoid Jo # 91L0Z Ad
005'29}'v$ 005°266$ 000°021°e$ 00.'882'cr1$ 193 0z syoaloud Jo # L10Z Ad
005'282'v$ 00S'Z¥9% 000°0¥9'eS 161°600'921L$ Se0'L 82 syoalodd jo # 810Z Ad
000'SELL$ 000°5¥9'2$ 000°'06%'v$ 66£'516'512S pEE'L: 0z syoslold Jo # 610Z Ad
5 - Ao ‘ou| ‘abejadoo)
000'GL¥$ 0% 000'GLy$ 000°000'9Z$ GZ1 uoginog spiskads siosiuadng Jo preog Aunod YAws 810Z/LHLO 1SPE
- : T "5U| 'ebeadoo) (w31MS) Aloyiny sanioey
000's6%$ 0% 000'66$ 000°000'6$ g€ uoqnog spiskeds [SUISNPU] [BUOIBAY UOIBUIYSEA-RALIS gL0Z/LULO Z5Ye
000'6Z1$ 0$ 000'5ZL$ 000'005% oL onenby vai Ajuno) xejileH 8L0Z/5e/L0 =323
0o00'segs o$ 000'6E8% 000'055'er$ 21z "2u] ‘ssB|9 SSald val funod AiusH 8102/52/L0 95he
000°0¥LS 000'04$ 000'0L$ $00°'81+2% 9z ouj uB|dIBUA 10 &1 *spiaueq 81L02/60/0} 9L¥E
000°'0¥L$ 000'0.€$ 000'0LE$ 000'085'2$ 002 S3WOH [euipre) i 8102/60/0} 6L¥E
; : swdojansq jeuisnpu] Aunod sRoPEUD
000'082% 000'0¥}$ 000'0v1$ 000'00¥'0}$ GL Kessiwwo) Axeg andw3g Auno) uipjuely 8102/60/0} - 18¥E
: ; . R Auoyiny Ayoed
000°616% 000'029% 000'G1E$ 000'000'8$ 6% 071 Yosised moeH |EUSNDU] [2UCIBSY BIUBAASHIG-BIAUEQ 8L0Z/SLHI0L 28re
000°0L}$ 0% 000'04L$ 000'059% 0s SOERY ABA Auno) piemp3 aould 810z/SHOL £8¥E
R o . SRR A Ruoyiny Ayjioe
000°0v2'L$ 000'029$ 000'029% 000°000 18 c9 Ju| 'sawsnpul 499 [eUsnpul [eUciBay BUEAASRIG-SIIAUEQ 8L0zZ/SL0L ¥8VE
. f Gy D77 uoiesuqed
000'002$ 0s$ 000'002$ 000°000'+$ £5 pue suIyoEIN AUNoD YALS siosiasadng jo pieog Aunod yAwsg 8L0Z/1L0/1 L sere
000°099% 000'0£€$ 000°0EES GBE'LEL'IES s #oedoid [9ss3 jo A9 ‘siinueg 8LOZ/ELZL 105¢
000'02+$ 000°09% 000°09% 000'008'L$ Sz QU ‘SpIEPIYON Aunog uipuely 8L0ZC LT zose
000'cELS 0% 000's61$ 000°062'0L$ v "ou] ‘Buibesoed NdI 3llouds siosiusdng Jo preog Aunod wAws 6102121120 90sE
000'082$ 000'0F1$ 000'0%L$ 000'006'2$ e 07171 deofjod UIppEJoN BlW3 6102/90/90 L0se
000'0€$ 000'G1$ 000°S1$ 000°0L2$ ] (paounouue jou) [BQUAPHUCD VA *Aunogd auiAn 40 Yal sulor 6L0Z/0E/0 ¥¥Se
000°001$ 000‘0s$ 000'05%$ 000'056% se 071 ‘subisaq abpry enig Aunog Jloued 610Z/0€/¥0 SPSE
000°'02$ 0$ 000'02% 000'005°€$ (] (peaunouue jou) [ERUSPLUCD 10 19 ‘xele 6102/0E/70 9¥SE
; ; PR Auoyiny Aypoey :
000'6¥$ 0% 000'S¥$ 000°006'+$ 2 (paounouue jou) (enuUapUUOD [ELysnpY| [euoiBaY BUBAASId-SIIAUEa 6L0ZI¥EISO 6¥Se
000'095$ 000'022$ 000'0¥€$ 000'0¥2'0vS 09t *au| asnayai J0 AuQ “aliAuEq 6102/22/50 05sE
000°0£L2$ 000'59£°L$ 000°G9E‘LS 612°0e'L1$ Se z sjoaloud Jo # (=12p 03) 0Z0Z Ad
% : 2 e Ajuoyiny Ajlitoe
000'0¥SS 0000428 000'0£2$ 000'SPY'9% (13 (paounouue jou) jeguapiuUo) |ELISAPU| [EUOIBEY BIUBAKSIIG-BlIAUED 6102/90/80 feleleol
000'061'2$ 000'60°L$ 000'S60°'L$ 612'858'0L8 (psounouue jou) [eRUIPLUCT J0 M1 *alAueg 6102/21/60
"~ emowy | wnowy | wnowy | poswoi T i e
- paaciddy fejol | ueoT peaoiddy - | Juels panocid: ‘juswissau] jepdes -

9)ep 01 020C Ad - 910C Ad sSpiemy 4041




ADMINISTRATIVE



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission

Financial Summary
As of August 31, 2019

TICR Fund Balance $ 208,893,640
Restricted Endowment Balance $ 75,976,441
Unrestricted Endowment Balance $ 122,819,816
Restricted Endowment Accum Interest $ 2,426,003
Unrestricted Endowment Accum Interest $ 3,111,261
Total Cash & Investments $ 413,227,161
Cash Disbursements - this month % 3,364,462
Cash Disbursements - FYTD $ 4,367,241
Unobligated
Fund Balances
Special Projects $ 2,175,062
Education $ 11,359,109
TROF (Deal Closing) $ 13,511,001
Southside Economic Development $ 25,195,123
Southwest Economic Development $ 2,750,279
Agribusiness $ 2,697,796
R&D/Broadband $ 3,966,787
Megapark $ 2,990,747
Megasite Prospect Incentive Fund $ 8,000,000
VRA Loan Program set-aside 3 949,433
Administration $ 1,907,067
TICRC General Account $ 26,720,652
FY2020 Budget Balance $ 102,122,956

9/26/2019



Tobacco Region Revitalization Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Cash Basis)
As of August 31, 2019

YTD Actual
as % of Variance Favorable
FY19 Budget YTD Actual Budget (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Other Revenue (all cost codes) $ - $ 550,113.18 550,113.18
Total Revenues $ - $ 550,113.18 $ 550,113.18
EXPENDITURES
Administration
Salaries, Fringe Benefits, Per Diems $ 1,538,430 $ 321,328.98 20.9% $1,217,101.02
Contractual Services 318,950 27,199.60 8.5% 291,750.40
Supplies and Materials 6,000 356.05 5.9% 5,643.95
Transfer Payments 244270 - 0.0% 244,270.00
Rent, Insurance, Agency Svc Charges 166,100 23,136.53 13.9% 142,963.47
Furniture and Equipment 5,500 162.23 2.9% 5,337.77
Subtotal - Administration $ 2,279,250 3 372,183.39 16.3% $ 1,907,066.61
Community Revitalization 17,500,000 3,995,057.89
Total Expenditures $ 19,779,250 $ 4,367,241.28
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ (19,779,250) $ (3,817,128.10)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (endowment and earnings) $ 43,048,222
CASH BALANCE, June 30, 2019 $ 212,710,769 $ 212,710,768.56

CASH BALANCE, August 31, 2019 $ 235,979,741 $ 208,893,640.46

9/26/2019



	10.10.19 - Full Commission - Table of Contents
	Oct 2019 Meeting Book.

